
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

Monday, January 12, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 
903 Main Street, Bastrop, Texas 

BEDC Board Meeting Agenda 01/12/2015                          1 

 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Public Comments [No discussion or action will occur beyond that allowed by State Open Meetings Laws] 
3. Presentations    
4. Announcements 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S INFORMATIONAL UPDATE REPORT:  Items for update, discussion and 
possible action: presented by Mike Talbot and/or Angela Ryan.  
 

 A. Meetings, Events and Travel attended/upcoming: 
  1. Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative Economic Forum held on November 20 
    
 B. Update on BEDC Projects and/or Business: 
  1. Main Street Program Update (Nancy Wood) 
  2. Update on the Bastrop EDC Business Park 
   a) Project status update 
   b) Review of the proposed Master Plan for the BEDC Business Park 
  3. Update on Bastrop Area Housing Study 
  4. Update on Downtown Parking and Traffic Study  
   a) Proposed SH 71 transportation improvements 
   b) Main Street Improvement Project 
   c) Alley D improvements (former Advertiser building) 
   d) Parking lot at the southwest corner of Pine Street and Water Street 
  5. Update on construction projects in the City of Bastrop 
 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
The BEDC Board reserves the right to convene into Executive Session at any time during the meeting 
regarding any agenda item.  In compliance with the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 Government Code, 
Vernon’s Texas Code, Annotated, the item below will be discussion in closed session: 
  1.  Section 551.071 – Consultations with Attorney – duty to advise on legal matters. 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
 
A.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Bastrop 
Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors and will be enacted with one motion. There 
will be no separate discussion, or separate action, on these items unless a Board Member so 
requests. 
 
A.1 Approval of meeting minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of November 17, 2014. 
 
B. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
C.  OLD BUSINESS 

 
C.1 Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of an amended ‘Economic Development 
Agreement’ between the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation and Niece Equipment; status update 
on contracts and discussions with Niece and lender. 
  

01/09/2015 1



BEDC Board Meeting Agenda 01/12/2015                  2 

C.2 Consideration, discussion and possible action on a proposal by the Bastrop Parks Board to use a portion 
of the Bastrop Business & Industrial Park for a disc golf course. 
 
C.3 Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of the proposed revisions to the BEDC 
Restrictive Covenants for the Bastrop Business and Industrial Park. 
 
C.4 Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of the proposed revisions to the BEDC 
Bylaws. 
 
D.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
D.1 Consideration, discussion and possible action on acceptance of the Bastrop Economic Development 
Corporation’s preliminary financial summary report for periods ending October 31, 2014, November 30, 2014, 
and December 31, 2014.  
 
D.2 Consideration, discussion and possible action on a request for the Bastrop Economic Development 
Corporation to sponsor a table at the Eric Johnson/Mike Stern Concert on February 17, benefitting the Bastrop 
County Boys and Girls Club, in the amount of $1,000.  
 
D.3 Consideration, discussion and possible action on the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation’s 
sponsorship of the 2015 Naturefest, in an amount to be determined at the discretion of the BEDC Board. 
 
D.4 Consideration, discussion and possible action on a request by Donald Bennet for pre-approval of a mega-
grant in the amount of $20,000, for renovations to interior and exterior of the building at 711 Chestnut Street. 
 
D.5 Consideration, discussion and possible action on a request by Deborah Jones for pre-approval of a 
mega-grant in the amount of $6,250, for renovations to interior and exterior of the building at 713/717 Chestnut 
Street.  
 
E.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
E.1 The Bastrop Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors will meet in a closed/executive 
session pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, to discuss the following:  
 

1. Section 551.071(1)(A) and Section 551.071(2) - Consultations with Attorney: (1) threatened and/or 
contemplated litigation, and (2) matters upon which the Attorney has a duty and/or responsibility 
to report to the governmental body.  

2. Section 551.072 - Deliberation about real property: ‘Project Copper’ and/or potential sales, 
acquisitions, exchanges, leases, dispositions or values of real property: Purchase of real property 
by the BEDC, disposition of real property by the BEDC, and/or City use of BEDC property.  

3. Section 551.087 - Deliberation regarding economic development negotiations: ‘Project Copper’ 
and/or ‘Project Gnome’.  

4. Section 551.074 - Personnel Matters: BEDC staffing, hiring, and performance and/or employment 
of an Executive Director/CEO.  

  
E.2 The Bastrop Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors will reconvene into open session to 
discuss, consider and/or take any action necessary related to the executive sessions noted herein, or regular 
agenda items, noted above, and/or related items. 
 
F.  BOARD INPUT ON FUTURE AGENDAS 
 
Inviting input from the Board of Directors related to issues for possible inclusion on future agendas, related to 
(but not limited to) issues such as BEDC projects, property, economic development prospects, community 
events, and BEDC business. 

01/09/2015 2



BEDC Board Meeting Agenda 01/12/2015                  3 

 
G.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

CERTIFICATE 

 

I, Angela Ryan, Executive Assistant to the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation, certify that this Notice of Meeting was 

posted on the front window of the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation offices, 903 Main Street, at the Bastrop City Hall, 

1311 Chestnut Street, and on the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation website on this the 9th day of January 2015 at 5:00 

p.m.  Copies of this agenda have been provided to those members of the media requesting such information. 

 

          Angela Ryan        
Angela Ryan, BEDC Executive Assistant 

 
THE BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION IS COMMITTED TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES 
ACT.  REASONABLE MODIFICATIONS AND EQUAL ACCESS WILL BE PROVIDED UPON REQUEST.  PLEASE CALL 512-303-9700.  

01/09/2015 3



City of Bastrop Update on Construction Projects as of 01/09/15 
 
 
Major Construction Projects in Process: 
 

 Hunter’s Crossing Retail Center FM 304 – 99% complete; exterior pending drainage 
fixtures  

 Little Colony Retail Center - Fred Loya Insurance – approximately 99% complete 
 Sport Clips – business is open; CO issued 12/1/14 
 HEB – 99.9% complete; cleaning up exterior; permanent CO pending 

 
Engineer Report: 

 

 Hobby Lobby Site Development plans – 2 minor corrections; accepted 1/7/15 
 Bastrop Station Site Development – 1/2/15 Review 2 comments issued – resubmittal 

required  
 2014 Water/Wastewater Improvements – 90% plan submittal received from Klotz; 

meeting scheduled for 1/13/15 to discuss final revisions and bid posting. 
 McCall Ranch – Development Agreement – under review of received docs from 

12/15 
 Bastrop County Medical Center – comments issued 8/20/14; awaiting resubmittal 

(development on hold due to fire) 
 Hunters Crossing 7B - Maintenance Bond – Phase 1 repairs complete, coordinating 

final seal coat.  Bond remains in effect. 
 Buttonwood Administrative Plat two residential lots - accepted; waiting on Mylar – 

owner may apply for variance to subdivision requirements in order to not dedicate 
ROW 

 SH 71 @ Pitt Street – Awaiting TxDOT response to option proposed by City 
 Wastewater Master Plan – development map sent to BEFCO; coordinating design 

flow standards with BEFCO 
 

01/09/2015 4



B.E.D.C.  

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM   _A1__  

 

 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  January 8, 2015   
         

MEETING DATE: _  January 12, 2015       
 

 

 

1. Agenda Item: Approval of BEDC Board Meeting minutes of the 11/17/14 Regular Board Meeting. 
   
2.  Party Making Request:  Angela Ryan, BEDC Executive Assistant    

   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes       X        No    

  
Attached for approval are the minutes from the 11/17/14 BEDC Board Meeting. 
 
 

4.  Policy Implication:  ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  Budgeted:  _________Yes   __________No      X N/A 

 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 

 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 

       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 

6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  ________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 

     a)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     b)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     c)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  Staff Recommendation:   

 

9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 

 

10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 

 

11. Action Taken:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

      ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

01/09/2015 5



DRAFT 
 

 
DRAFT 11/17/14 BEDC Board Meeting Minutes             Page 1 of 4 
 

 BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Minutes of Monthly Meeting, November 17, 2014  
903 Main Street, Bastrop, Texas 

 
The Bastrop Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) met on Monday, November 17, 2014, 
at 6:30 p.m. in the BEDC Boardroom at 903 Main Street for the Regular Monthly Meeting. 
Board members present were: Steve Mills, Gary Gutierrez, Dr. Neil Gurwitz, Pat Crawford, Mayor 
Ken Kesselus, and Mike Talbot (ex-officio). Board Member Willie DeLaRosa was absent. Board 
Member Gary Schiff joined the meeting during Executive Session. 
Staff members present: Angela Ryan and JC Brown, BEDC Attorney. 
Others in attendance: Nancy Wood, Carlos Liriano, Terry Hagerty, and Miles Smith.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
1. Call to Order – Steve Mills, Chairman of the Board, called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
2. Public Comments – None. 
3. Presentations – None.  
4. Announcements – None.  
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S INFORMATIONAL UPDATE REPORT - Items for update, 
discussion and possible action: 
 
A. Meetings, Events and Travel attended/upcoming  
 1. TxDOT Informational Meeting October 22 – Mayor Kesselus commented that Mr. Schiff 

had done a great job speaking at the meeting.  
 2. RECA (Real Estate Council of Austin) Quarterly Luncheon November 10 – Mrs. Ryan 

reported the event was well-attended and she had received a lot of positive feedback.  
 3. Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative Economic Forum November 20, Bastrop Convention 

Center – Mrs. Ryan said a quorum notice had been posted for the event and offered to 
RSVP for any Board member who wanted to attend. 

 
B. Update on BEDC Projects and/or Business: 
 1. Main Street Program Update (Nancy Wood) – Ms. Wood reported that Main Street Café 

would be opening in the former Deli Depot space. Jennifer Johnson, the winner of the 
2013 Business Plan Competition, would be opening Johnson’s Bakery on November 18, 
on Old Austin Hwy next to Sherwin-Williams. This year’s competition is tomorrow night, 
with four entries. Ms. Wood reported that the BEDC had won the Texas Downtown 
Association President’s Award for the BuyBastropTX campaign.  

 2. Update on construction of infrastructure and other projects in the Business & Industrial 
Park – Mr. Talbot said the updates he had were all concerning pending prospects and he 
would discuss them in Executive Session. 

 3. Update on Bastrop Area Housing Study – Mr. Talbot said that RCLCO anticipates having 
the preliminary results of the study ready by Thanksgiving. 

 4. Update on the status of the Bastrop Downtown Transportation Study – Mr. Talbot reported 
that he had met with a consultant who had a lot of experience with conducting downtown 
traffic studies. The results of the updated 2009 study were very similar to the original 
results.  

 5. Update on the City of Bastrop purchasing the former Advertiser Building – Mr. Talbot said 
that at this point, the only paperwork needed is a corporate resolution from Cox Media. 

01/09/2015 6



DRAFT 
 

 
DRAFT 11/17/14 BEDC Board Meeting Minutes             Page 2 of 4 
 

They can then close on the property. Mr. Talbot said the building will require an asbestos 
evaluation before it can be removed. He said the plan is to install a concrete parking lot 
with the structural integrity to support a parking garage in case one is built in the future. 
All of the utilities will be relocated. Mr. Talbot said this would be a joint project between 
the City of Bastrop and the BEDC.  

 6. Update on leasing the property (public parking) located at the southwest corner of Pine 
Street and Water Street – Mr. Talbot said that he would coordinate with Mr. Kershaw and 
hoped to have the parking lot opened by the end of the week.  

 7. Update on FY2013/2014 BEDC Annual Operating Budget – Mr. Talbot explained that 
there was not a financial report in the Board packets this month because the Finance 
Department was still working on closing out last fiscal year.  

 8. Update on construction projects in the City of Bastrop – Mr. Talbot said that XS Ranch 
had made a presentation to City Council, and they approved an amendment to their MUD 
to increase the density. Their plans are to begin construction of the first phase early next 
year. The preliminary plat for Pecan Park was also approved. Mr. Talbot reported that 
three or four additional tenants will be opening at Burleson Crossing.  

 
A.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A.1 Approval of meeting minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of October 20, 2014. Mr. 
Gutierrez made the motion to approve the minutes as submitted, Dr. Gurwitz seconded, and the 
motion passed. 
 
B. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
C.  OLD BUSINESS  
 
C.1 Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of the amended ‘Economic 
Development Agreement’ between the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation and Niece 
Equipment. Mr. Talbot recommended that Mr. Mills be authorized to sign the documents once 
everything is finalized. Ms. Brown reminded the Board what changes had been made to the 
agreement: the number of employees had decreased from 50 to 25; the capital investment had 
decreased from $2.25 million to $1.75 million; and the Board had decided to sell the property to 
Mr. Niece “as is”, that the BEDC would have no obligation to perform further site improvements. 
Ms. Brown said she still needed to know the name of the company to include in the agreement, 
since she had been told it would not be under the name of Niece Equipment. She said she also 
needed to know the length of time the Board would allow the company to keep finished inventory 
on the property. After further discussion, Mr. Gutierrez made the motion to approve the amended 
agreement between the BEDC and Niece Equipment, with the correct name of the company once 
it’s received, and the provision that finished inventory can remain onsite up to 90 days, with the 
offer remaining open until December 15, 2014. Mrs. Crawford seconded, and the motion passed. 
Mr. Talbot said he would prepare a cover letter which would include the deadline.  
 
C.2 Consideration, discussion and possible action on a resolution by the Bastrop Economic 
Development Corporation authorizing Chairman Steve Mills and/or Interim Executive Director 
Mike Talbot to execute all necessary contracts and related documentation necessary to finalize 
the conveyance of 4.236 acres in the Bastrop Business & Industrial Park to Niece Equipment. Mr. 
Gutierrez made the motion authorizing either Mike Talbot or Steve Mills to execute the closing 
documents on the Niece Project. Mayor Kesselus seconded, and the motion passed.  
 

01/09/2015 7



DRAFT 
 

 
DRAFT 11/17/14 BEDC Board Meeting Minutes             Page 3 of 4 
 

C.3 Consideration, discussion and possible action on a proposal by the Bastrop Parks Board to 
use a portion of the Bastrop Business & Industrial Park for a disc golf course. Mayor Kesselus 
said he felt the Board should make a decision about the possibility of the Parks Board using 40 
acres in the hilly area of the Industrial Park for a disc golf course. After discussion, Mr. Talbot said 
he would arrange for him and Mr. Mills to tour the area and the Board would make a decision by 
the January Board meeting. Mr. Talbot said he would let the Parks Board know.  
 
D.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
D.1 Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of amending the Bastrop 
Economic Development Corporation’s Fiscal Year 2015 budget in the amount of $35,000 for the 
cost of the Bastrop Area Housing Study. Mrs. Crawford made the motion to amend the 2015 
budget in the amount of $35,000 in order to fund the Housing Study. Mr. Gutierrez seconded, and 
the motion passed.  
 
D.2 Consideration, discussion and possible action on proposal(s) from The Retail Coach for 
continuation of services. Mrs. Ryan explained The Retail Coach had submitted two proposals. 
The first was to provide 2015 demographic information, at a cost of $4,500. The second option 
was for The Retail Coach to provide an updated gap analysis and retailer match list, as well as 
2015 data, at a cost of $9,500. They would also continue to work with local developers to help 
recruit retailers to the area. Mrs. Ryan pointed out that many of the retailers on the 2011 retail 
match list had already located in Bastrop, such as Academy and Hobby Lobby, and that accurate 
and up-to-date data plays a definite role in attracting retail. After a brief discussion, Mrs. Crawford 
made the motion to approve the proposal from The Retail Coach in the amount of $9,500, Dr. 
Gurwitz seconded, and the motion passed. 
 
D.3 Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of the proposed revisions to the 
BEDC Restrictive Covenants for the Bastrop Business & Industrial Park. Ms. Brown summarized 
the proposed changes to the Restrictive Covenants: allowing two (2) inch caliper trees instead of 
four (4) inch and allowing non-opaque fencing for security purposes. Mrs. Ryan asked if the map 
exhibit could be updated. Mr. Talbot said he would take care of it. It was decided to postpone 
approval of the changes until the next Board meeting in order for the Board to have additional 
time to review the Restrictive Covenants for other possible changes. 
 
D.4 Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of the proposed revisions to the 
BEDC Bylaws. Ms. Brown summarized the proposed changes to the Bylaws: references to the 
“President/CEO” have been changed to “Executive Director”; areas dealing with vacancies, 
absences, and ethics now refer back to the City’s Code; and deleting the portion which says that 
checks require two signatures, since the City’s Finance Department handles all payments. Ms. 
Brown said there was no need to add verbiage about staggering board terms. She said that in 
2015, the terms of five Board members would end (Steve Mills, Gary Gutierrez, Neil Gurwitz, Pat 
Crawford, and Willie DeLaRosa, since his term is concurrent with his City Council term). Ms. 
Brown explained that in order to get back on the staggered schedule, for next year’s appointments 
the Mayor could simply appoint some Board members to two year terms and others to one year 
terms. In the case of a Board member being appointed to fill a vacancy in the middle of a term, 
the person appointed would fill the remainder of that term, and not a full two years. Mayor 
Kesselus asked if a change could be made to the Bylaws which would allow the Mayor to appoint 
a City Council member to serve on the BEDC Board in the Mayor’s place, and that the Mayor can 
reclaim the seat if he or she feels it necessary. Ms. Brown said she would make the change for 
the next Board meeting. 
 

01/09/2015 8



DRAFT 
 

 
DRAFT 11/17/14 BEDC Board Meeting Minutes             Page 4 of 4 
 

E.  EXECUTIVE SESSION –  
 
E.1 At 7:53 p.m., Mr. Mills convened the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation Board of 
Directors into a closed/executive session pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, 
to discuss the following: 
 

1. Section 551.071(1)(A) and Section 551.071(2) - Consultations with Attorney: (1) 
threatened and/or contemplated litigation, and (2) matters upon which the Attorney 
has a duty and/or responsibility to report to the governmental body, including legal 
matters that may be presented at the future joint meeting of the BEDC and the City 
Council.    

2. Section 551.072 - Deliberation about real property: ‘Project Copper’ and/or potential 
sales, acquisitions, exchanges, leases, dispositions or values of real property.  

3. Section 551.087 - Deliberation regarding economic development negotiations:  
‘Project Copper’ and/or ‘Project Gnome’. 

4. Section 551.074 - Personnel Matters: BEDC staffing and performance and/or 
employment of an Executive Director/CEO.  

 
E.2 The Bastrop Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors reconvened from 
Executive Session at 8:54 p.m.  
 
F.  BOARD INPUT ON FUTURE AGENDAS 
 

 Inviting input from the Board of Directors related to issues for possible inclusion on future 
agendas, related to (but not limited to) issues such as BEDC projects, property, economic 
development prospects, community events, and BEDC business.  
 
G. ADJOURNMENT – Gary Schiff moved to adjourn and Pat Crawford seconded. The BEDC 
Board of Directors adjourned the meeting at 8:55 p.m. 
 

01/09/2015 9



B.E.D.C.  

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM   C1___  

 

 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  January 7, 2015   
          

MEETING DATE: _   January 12, 2015       
 

 

 

1. Agenda Item: Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of an amended ‘Economic 

Development Agreement’ between the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation and Niece 

Equipment; status update on contracts and discussions with Niece and lender. 
   
2.  Party Making Request:  Angela Ryan, BEDC Executive Assistant    

   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes               No    X  

  
The BEDC Board voted to approve an amended agreement with Niece Equipment at the 11/17/14 Board 
Meeting. Mr. Niece has since proposed additional changes to the agreement, including a Subordination 
Document, and additional variances from the Industrial Park Restrictive Covenants.  
 

4.  Policy Implication:  ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  Budgeted:  _________Yes   __________No      X N/A 

 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 

 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 

       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 

6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  ________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 

     a)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     b)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     c)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  Staff Recommendation:   

 

9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 

 

10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 

 

11. Action Taken:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

      ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

01/09/2015 10



B.E.D.C.  

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM   C2__  

 

 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  January 7, 2015   
         

MEETING DATE: _  January 12, 2015       
 

 

 

1. Agenda Item: _Consideration, discussion and possible action on a proposal by the Bastrop Parks 

Board to use a portion of the Bastrop Industrial Park for a disc golf course. 
   
2.  Party Making Request:  Mayor Ken Kesselus    

   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes      X         No       

  
At the 08/25/14 BEDC Board Meeting, William Dildine and Lee Harle from the Bastrop Parks Board 
requested that the BEDC Board consider donating approximately 40 acres in the Bastrop Business & 
Industrial Park to the City of Bastrop for the purpose of developing a disc golf course in Bastrop. This is a 
follow-up to that request. A map showing the 40 acres is attached.  
  
 

4.  Policy Implication:  ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  Budgeted:  _________Yes   __________No      X N/A 

 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 

 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 

       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 

6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  ________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 

     a)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     b)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     c)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  Staff Recommendation:   

 

9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 

 

10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 

 

11. Action Taken:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

      ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

01/09/2015 11



01/09/2015 12



B.E.D.C.  

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM   C3___  

 

 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  January 7, 2015_   
         

MEETING DATE: _   January 12, 2015_       
 

 

 

1. Agenda Item: Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of the proposed 

revisions to the BEDC Restrictive Covenants for the Bastrop Business and Industrial Park. 
   
2.  Party Making Request:  Mike Talbot, Interim BEDC Executive Director    

   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes      X         No     

  
A committee composed of Mike Talbot, JC Brown, Gary Schiff, Pat Crawford, Ken Kesselus and Angela 
Ryan met on 10/29/14 to review and make necessary changes to the current Restrictive Covenants for the 
Bastrop Business and Industrial Park. Ms. Brown made the suggested changes and the “redlined” version 
of the revised Restrictive Covenants was reviewed at the 11/17/14 Board meeting. A “clean” copy of the 
revised Restrictive Covenants is included for the Board’s review and possible approval.  
 

4.  Policy Implication:  _________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  Budgeted:  _________Yes   __________No      X N/A 

 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 

 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 

       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 

6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  _____________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 

     a)  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

     b)  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

     c)  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  Staff Recommendation:   

 

9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 

 

10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 

 

11. Action Taken:              

               

 

01/09/2015 13



 

 

1 

 

Bastrop Economic Development Corporation’s 

Sixth Amended Protective Covenants  

Bastrop Business and Industrial Park 

Bastrop, Texas 

Bastrop County, Texas 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

     §       KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

COUNTY OF BASTROP  § 

 

 

 THAT, WHEREAS, BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION, a Texas economic development corporation (hereinafter referred to as 

the “BEDC”), is the owner of over fifty-one percent (51%) of that certain 265.403 acre 

tract of real property located in Bastrop County, Texas, as more fully described in “Exhibit 

A,” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, (“Bastrop Business and 

Industrial Park” or the “Park” or the “Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Property was made subject to a Declaration of Protective 

Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Bastrop Business Industrial Park, recorded 

at Volume 844, Pages 799-835, filed on or about April 3, 1997, in the Official Records of 

Bastrop County, Texas, (the “Original Protective Covenants, Conditions and 

Restrictions”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Original Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions have 

been previously amended by the BEDC on five prior occasions, as follows: 

 

1. On or about December 3, 1997, the First Amendment to the Original 

Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions was recorded at 

Volume 882, Pages 606–621, in the Official Records of Bastrop County, 

Texas (“First Amendment”); and 

 

2. On or about October 7, 1998, the Second Amendment to the Original 

Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions was recorded at 

Volume 939, Pages 608-623, in the Official Records of Bastrop County, 

Texas (“Second Amendment”); and  

 

3. On or about March 29, 1999, the Third Amendment to the Original 

Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions was recorded at 

Volume 971, Pages 09–10, in the Official Records of Bastrop County, 

Texas (“Third Amendment”); and  

 

4. On or about May 13, 1999, the Fourth Amendment to the Original 

Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions was recorded at 

01/09/2015 14



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

2 

 

Volume 980, Pages 797–798, in the Official Records of Bastrop County, 

Texas (“Fourth Amendment”); and  

 

5. On or about July 7, 2014, the Fifth Amendment to the Original 

Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions was recorded at 

Volume 2332, Pages 267-288, in the Official Records of Bastrop 

County, Texas (“Fifth Amendment”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, BEDC, pursuant to the Texas Property Code, Title 11, Chapter 202, 

as owner of over fifty-one percent (51%) of the Property, now wishes to amend the Fifth 

Amended Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions and replace those prior 

recorded Amendments to the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions with those detailed 

herein, as the “Sixth Amended Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions” (“Sixth 

Amendment”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the BEDC desires that the Property and/or portions thereof sold and 

conveyed by the BEDC in the future shall be subject to the covenants, conditions and 

restrictions, liens, and charges hereinafter set forth as the Sixth Amendment; and 

 

 WHEREAS, BEDC desires to create and carry out a uniform plan for the 

improvement, development, and sale of the Property and portions thereof for the benefit of 

the present and future owners of the Property, and desires to maintain a high quality of 

development in the Park, BEDC hereby adopts and establishes the following Sixth 

Amended Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (“Protective Covenants” or 

“Covenants”), which shall apply uniformly to the use, improvement, occupancy, and 

conveyance of all the Property, including the roads, avenues, streets, alleys, and waterways 

therein; and each contract or deed which is executed with regard to the Property, or any 

portion thereof, shall conclusively be held to have either been: (1) executed, delivered, and 

accepted subject to the following (regardless of whether or not the same are set out in full 

or by reference in said contract or deed), or (2) have received full notice of this Sixth 

Amendment to the covenants now applicable to the Property, going forward; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of the original and these amended Protective Covenants 

is to ensure that the Industrial Park is developed and maintained as a high quality industrial 

park, serving the Central Texas area, and that the Property and development therein 

maintains and increases in value, over time, for those businesses and industries which have 

elected to locate and operate in the Industrial Park; and  

 

WHEREAS, to maintain the high quality and standards noted herein, the BEDC 

and City shall enforce these Protective Covenants and the City’s Code of Ordinances, 

promptly, assertively, consistently and fairly to the benefit of all who own Property and/or 

operate in the Industrial Park.    

 

01/09/2015 15



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

3 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby declared that all the Property shall be held, sold, 

conveyed, and occupied subject to the following Protective Covenants, which are hereby 

amended and adopted by the BEDC for the purpose of protecting the value and desirability 

of the Property and the Industrial Park, and which shall run with the Property and shall be 

binding on all parties having any right, title, or interest in or to the Property, or any part 

thereof, their heirs, successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of each owner and 

occupier thereof.  Further, the above listed prior amendments to the Protective Covenants, 

filed in the Bastrop County Official Records, are hereby abrogated and replaced in whole 

by the following Sixth Amendment to the Protective Covenants. 

 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
(“PROTECTIVE COVENANTS” OR “COVENANTS”) 

 

A. DEFINITIONS: 
 

For the purposes of these Protective Covenants, the following terms and words are to be 

used and interpreted as hereinafter defined. 

 

1. BEDC and/or Bastrop Economic Development Corporation:  A 4B Economic 

Development Corporation operating under the laws of the State of Texas, statutorily 

enabled and operating pursuant to Chapters 501 and 505 of the Local Government 

Code, and the owner and developer of fifty-one percent (51%) or more of the 

Property in the Bastrop Business and Industrial Park, as of the date of this amended 

filing.  The BEDC includes its Board of Directors, (also referred to herein as the 

“Board”). 

 

2. Berm:  An earthen mound designed to provide visual interest, screen undesirable 

views, and/or decrease noise. 

 

3. Boundary Property Line:  The near side of any street, alley, stream, or other 

permanently dedicated open space from the noise source when such open space 

exists between the property line of the noise source and adjacent property. When 

no such open space exists, the common line between the two parcels of property 

shall be interpreted as the boundary property line. 

 

4. Building:  Any structure intended for shelter, housing, or enclosure of persons, 

animals, or chattel. When separated by dividing walls without openings, each 

portion of such structure so separated shall be deemed a separate structure. 

 

A. Primary:  A building in which the primary activity associated with the lot is 

conducted. 

 

01/09/2015 16



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

4 

 

B. Accessory: A building customarily incidental and subordinate to the 

primary building located on the same lot. 

 

5. Building Area: That portion of a lot upon which buildings may be placed, 

excluding required yards and limited by the maximum building coverage as 

specified. 

 

6. Building Coverage:  The percent of the lot area covered by the building exclusive 

of all overhanging roofs. 

 

7. Building Line:  A line established generally parallel to the front street line.  No 

building or structure may be permitted in the area between the building line and the 

street right-of-way line. 

 

8. Caliper:  The diameter of a tree at four (4) feet in height (from natural or built up 

ground level). 

 

9. Code of Ordinances:  The ordinances and related regulations that are adopted by 

and enforced by the City of Bastrop, Texas, and which are generally applicable to 

the Industrial Park.  

 

10. Decibel:  A unit measurement of sound pressure. 

 

11. Easement:  A right given by the owner of a parcel of land to another person, public 

agency, or private corporation for a specific and limited use of that property. 

 

12. Face of the Building:  The general outer surface, not including cornices, bay 

window, or architectural projections. 

 

13. Frequency:  The number of times per second a vibration or sound wave oscillates. 

 

14. Frontage:  The measure of property on one side of a street, closest to the street 

right-of-way, and between the two side property lines associated with the same tract 

of land. 

 

15. Ground Cover:  Plants, normally reaching an average maximum height of not 

more than 24 inches at maturity. 

 

16. Height: 

 

A. Building: The vertical distance from grade or base flood elevation, 

whichever is higher, to the highest finished roof surface (in the case of flat 

roofs), or to a point at the average height of the highest roof having a pitch. 

 

01/09/2015 17



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

5 

 

B. Sign: The vertical distance from the uppermost point of an outdoor 

advertising sign to the ground immediately below such point. 

 

C. Wall:  The vertical distance to the top measured from the foundation wall, 

or from a girder or other immediate support of such wall. 

 

D. Screen/Fence:  The vertical distance to the top measured from natural or 

built-up ground level immediately below the screen. 

 

17. Industrial Park:  The Bastrop Business and Industrial Park Subdivision in the City 

of Bastrop, Bastrop County, Texas. 

 

18. Landowner:  The legal and beneficial owner of all the land proposed to be included 

in a development or transaction, including the possessor of an option or contract to 

purchase, or other persons having an enforceable vested proprietary interest in such 

land. 

 

19. Landscaping:  Any combination of living plants (such as grass, ground cover, 

shrubs, vines, hedges or trees) and non-living landscape materials (such as rocks, 

pebbles, sand, mulch, walls, fences or decorative paving materials). 

 

20. Loading Space:  A space on the same lot as the main building specifically provided 

for the standing, loading, or unloading of trucks and having minimum dimensions 

of twelve (12) by sixty (60) feet. 

 

21. Lot:  A parcel of land occupied or intended for occupancy by a use permitted in 

these covenants, including one (1) primary building together with its accessory 

buildings, open spaces, and parking spaces required by these covenants, and having 

its principal frontage upon a street or upon an officially approved point of access. 

 

A. Corner:  A lot abutting upon two (2) or more streets at their intersection. 

 

B. Depth:  The perpendicular distance between the front and the rear lot lines. 

 

C. Double-Frontage:  A lot having direct access to two parallel public streets.  

For purposes of this covenant, land abutting such streets shall be considered 

“front yards.” 

 

D. Line:  The boundary line of the property. 

 

E. Frontage:  The yard or yards nearest the streets. 

 

F. Rear Line:  The boundary of a lot, which is most distant from and most 

nearly parallel to, the front lot line. 

01/09/2015 18



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

6 

 

 

G. Side Line:  Lines running between the front and rear property lines. 

 

22. Masonry:  The term Masonry, when applied to the Building Design and Material 

standards contained herein, includes materials such as:  stone, brick, stucco, 

decorative concrete blocks and tilt-wall concrete construction.  (Note:  fluted, split-

face, or other common types of ‘concrete blocks’ are not acceptable.)  Other 

materials, if equal in quality and aesthetic appearance to decorative masonry, may 

also be considered to be Masonry, upon the specific request made to and approval 

by the BEDC Board, prior to construction.  

   

23. Odorous Matter:  Any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, including but not limited 

to gases, vapors, dusts, fumes, and mists, which causes an odor sensation to human 

beings. 

 

24. Owner:  The BEDC or other party once conveyance of a tract in the Park by the 

BEDC is final.  

 

25. Parking Space:  A permanently surfaced area, enclosed or unenclosed, sufficient 

in size to store one automobile, together with a permanently surfaced driveway 

connecting the parking space with a street or alley and permitting ingress or egress 

of an automobile. 

 

26. Paving:  A system of structuring base material and sealing an impervious wear 

surface. 

 

27. Project:  The development of a tract in the Industrial Park by an owner, grantee, 

occupant or lessee, as approved by the Board and the City, and in compliance with 

these Sixth Amended Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, as 

hereinafter amended by the Board.  

 

28. Screen/Fence:  There are two types of screens/fences allowed in the Industrial 

Park, as follows: (1) “Opaque”, which is a type of screen/fence that does not 

provide any visibility of the areas or items that are located beyond the barrier and 

which are generally built from materials such as stone, wood, brick, block or other 

similar materials; and (2) “Non-opaque”, which is a type of screen/fence that allows 

a partial or complete view of the areas and items beyond the barrier and which are 

generally built from materials such as decorative iron, chain link, or other suitable 

semi-opaque materials.  The BEDC has the right of approval on all proposed Non-

opaque fencing, and will consider the use that will be made of the property behind 

the fence when evaluating approval.  Accordingly, all applicants must specify (and 

document) what use and what materials, equipment, etc., will be placed behind 

Non-opaque fencing, if proposed.  No chain metal fencing that utilizes ‘woven 

slats’ will be allowed in the Park. [Reference Section “H.”] 

01/09/2015 19



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

7 

 

 

29. Shrub:  A woody plant, smaller than a tree, consisting of several small stems from 

the ground or small branches near the ground. 

 

30. Sign:  For purposes of this ordinance, “sign” shall mean “outdoor identification 

sign.” 

 

31. Smoke:  The visible discharge of particulate matter from a chimney, vent, or 

combustion process. 

 

32. Sound Level Meter:  An instrument used to measure sound intensity. 

 

33. Structure:  Anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires a location 

on the ground or an attachment to something located on the ground. 

 

34. Setback:  A distance between the lot-line and the point where a building may be 

constructed. 

 

35. Toxic and Noxious Matter:  Any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter which is present 

in sufficient quantities to endanger the health, safety, and comfort of persons in the 

vicinity or which may cause injury or damage to property as defined by the United 

States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 

 

36. Variance:  A request by a current or future owner, grantee, occupant or lessee in 

the Industrial Park that the Board approves a variation from the strict application of 

the standards and restrictions set forth herein. The BEDC shall hear and decide, as 

the final decision maker, all such requests, upon a completed application for same, 

provided to the Board along with documentation and evidence supporting the 

application for such variance.  

 

37. Vibration:  A temporal and spatial oscillation of displacement, velocity, or 

acceleration in a solid material. 

 

38. Yard:   
 

A. Front:  An unoccupied open space on the same lot with a building, between 

the wall of the building nearest the street on which the lot fronts, and 

bounded by the line of that wall as if extended, the side lines of the lot and 

the front street line of the lot. The front yard of a corner lot consisting of 

one platted lot is the yard adjacent to that street on which the lot has its least 

dimension. 

 

B. Rear:  An unoccupied open space on the same lot with a building, between 

the rear-line as if extended, the side lines of the lot and rear line of the lot. 

01/09/2015 20



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

8 

 

 

C. Side:  An unoccupied open space on the same lot with a building, situated 

between the building and the side-line of the lot and extended through from 

the front yard to the rear yard. Any line not a rear-line or a front-line is 

deemed to be a side-yard line. 

 

B. USES PERMITTED: 
 

The following uses are allowed in the Industrial Park: Processing, research, service 

businesses, light industrial, manufacturing, warehousing, office and distribution and 

services ancillary to these identified, allowable uses. No portion of the Property shall be 

used in any manner that may damage or in any way negatively affect the quality of the 

Industrial Park, as a whole, or the Park’s other occupants by reason of odor, fumes, dust, 

glare, noise, air, ground or water pollution, noxious waste, fire/explosion hazard. (See also, 

“Performance Standards”). 

 

C. BUILDING DESIGN AND MATERIALS: 

 

1. General:  The objective of these restrictions and covenants is to obtain quality and 

consistency in architectural design and a high quality of improvements in the 

Industrial Park, which is intended to protect and enhance values of businesses in the 

Industrial Park. In order to achieve this, and allow variety and the use of new 

materials (as they may develop), all architectural designs, whether for primary or 

accessory structures, are strictly subject to review and approval of the BEDC Board 

of Directors. 

 

2. The Industrial Park is composed of two (2) development areas, as shown on the 

attached map (see Exhibit “B”). The two Areas are identified as follows: 

 

a. Area A:  The following Design and Material Standards shall apply to the 

tracts that are located in Area A: 

 

 The height of buildings or structures may not exceed City Code for 

areas zoned Industrial.  

 All primary or accessory structures should be constructed in 

Masonry.  

 The BEDC will have the right to make or grant variances and give 

written approval of all materials to be used in constructing a building 

in Area A. Approval by the BEDC of any proposed alternative 

materials shall be deemed to be in compliance with these Protective 

Covenants.   

 

b. Area B:  The following Design and Material Standards shall apply to the 

tracts that are located in Area B: 

01/09/2015 21



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

9 

 

 

 The height of buildings or structures may not exceed City Code for 

areas zoned Industrial. 

 Primary and accessory structures must have Masonry and/or glass 

fronts (i.e., the front of the building will be all walls which face to 

the street carrying the structure’s address); however, up to three (3) 

walls of such buildings may be constructed of steel.  

 The BEDC will have the right to make or grant variances and give 

written approval of all materials to be used in constructing a 

building in Area B. Approval by the BEDC of any proposed 

alternative materials shall be deemed to be in compliance with 

these Protective Covenants.   

 

D. CONSTRUCTION: 
 

Construction of each Project (construction) will commence within twelve (12) months of 

the purchase or lease of the property by a business or industry locating in the Park.  

Construction will be considered to be underway upon approval of an acceptable set of 

building plans by BEDC and the Planning Department of the City of Bastrop, and all 

applicable building construction permits applied for from the City have been issued.  

Construction shall be completed no later than eighteen (18) months after such work is 

commenced, unless otherwise formally approved and varied by the BEDC, in writing. 

 

E. BUILDING SETBACKS AND LOT COVERAGE: 
 

1. Front yard:  All buildings shall be set back from the street right-of-way lines a 

minimum depth of twenty-five (25) feet. 

 

2. Rear yard:  A lot with a primary building located on it must have a rear yard of no 

less than ten (10) feet. 

 

3. Side yard:  All buildings shall have side yard setbacks of not less than ten (10) feet. 

 

4. Lot size:  Each lot area shall be not less than twenty thousand (20,000) square feet.  

Only one (1) principal building shall be permitted on any lot. Any variance from 

this requirement shall be approved in writing by BEDC. 

 

5. Lot width:  Each lot shall have a minimum width of not less than one hundred (100) 

feet at the front building line. Every lot shall abut on a street for a distance of not 

less than sixty (60) feet. 

 

6. Lot depth:  Each lot must have a minimum depth of not less than one hundred (100) 

feet. 

 

01/09/2015 22



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

10 

 

7. Density:  One primary building per lot, unless variance is approved in writing by 

BEDC. 

 

8. Lot coverage:  Primary and accessory buildings in combination shall not cover 

more than seventy percent (70%) of the total area of the lot. 

 

9. Accessory structures:  Shall meet all City of Bastrop Codes and regulations, 

pertaining to location, design, use, etc., of accessory structures.  

 

10. No landowner or subsequent purchaser, other than BEDC, of any lot(s) in the 

Industrial Park shall subdivide any lot into two or more lots for the purpose of sale, 

lease, or transfer to another purchaser, lessee, or tenant, without the express 

approval of the BEDC. 

 

11. Drainage plans for any development or activity on a lot shall be submitted in 

conformance with City of Bastrop drainage requirements. 

 

F. PARKING: 

 

Employees’ and visitors’ parking shall be provided in off-street permanently paved parking 

areas at a minimum standard of one passenger car parking space for each one thousand 

(1,000) square feet of warehouse building areas, for each five hundred (500) square feet of 

manufacturing building area, and/or for each two hundred fifty (250) square feet of office 

building area. Reinforced concrete paving five (5) inches thick shall be required for all 

access roadways and loading and unloading areas. No use shall be made of the property or 

any building constructed which requires or is reasonably expected to require or attract 

parking in excess of the facility’s capacity or the facilities maintained therein on said 

property. Parking will not be permitted on any street or any place other than the designated 

paved parking areas, and each owner or lessee will be responsible for compliance by their 

respective employees or visitors. If parking needs increase, additional off-street parking 

shall be provided by the property owner, in accordance with the above formula. 

 

Parking may be located at the rear, sides, or front of the buildings. If located at the front of 

the building, a parking area shall be set back a minimum of ten (10) feet from the property 

line and shall be separated from the property line by a required landscaped area (See, 

Landscaping), or as determined by the City’s Code. 

 

Parking layout and materials used for construction of parking areas must be approved by 

BEDC prior to construction. 

 

G. LANDSCAPING: 
 

All open, unpaved areas, including but not limited to fronts, sides of buildings, and all 

setback areas, shall, upon development, be planted and landscaped according to a plan 

01/09/2015 23



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

11 

 

submitted for approval by the property Owner to the BEDC. Approval of any such plan 

will be based on its harmony and consistency with the general character and aesthetic 

quality of the Industrial Park, as a whole. In particular, a landscape strip or front yard in a 

minimum width of twenty (20) feet must be designed and installed by the developer, along 

the street frontage adjacent to the property line and street right-of-way. This landscaped 

area shall contain: (i) ground cover and/or grass and must be consistently and properly 

maintained, and (ii) trees, such as live oaks, pines, elms, or other native tree varieties, and 

each tree must have a minimum of two (2) inch caliper measured one foot from the ground 

level. Trees must be planted in a random layout, with an average spacing between trees of 

not more than fifty (50) feet. If tracts of land are being held for future development, within 

sixty (60) days of purchasing/closing such tracts, the new Owner(s) shall install and 

maintain ground cover on the tract. It is the Owner’s responsibility to properly maintain 

tracts owned by them, at all times. Complete Landscaping, in compliance with these 

Protective Covenants and the City Code, by Owner, is required at the time of development 

of the property. 

 

H. SCREENING/FENCING: 

 

The right of a purchaser, grantee, owner, or lessee of tracts in the Industrial Park, to use 

tracts of land and structures on the Property, shall not be construed as permission to keep 

goods, materials, waste, mechanical parts, equipment, incinerators, storage tanks or similar 

items on the purchaser’s, grantee’s, owner’s, or lessee’s grounds in a manner that, when 

exposed to the public view, reduces the overall aesthetic appearance, look or quality of the 

Industrial Park, in the sole opinion of the Board.   

 

If a purchaser, grantee, owner or lessee determines that it has a need to store or keep these 

types of items, equipment or materials in the public view, they shall be fenced or screened 

in a manner approved by the BEDC, in advance of such storage.   

 

All screening and fencing in the Industrial Park is required to be at a minimum height 

(above ground level) of eight (8) feet, unless this height is varied by formal action of the 

Board. Different types of screening and/or fencing (i.e., Opaque or Non-opaque) is 

required, depending on what is being shielded or stored, and whether a direct view from 

adjacent buildings, streets, or public space is advisable for security purposes, as follows: 

(1)  If, for security purposes, the purchaser, grantee, owner or lessee of a tract desires not 

to use Opaque screening or fencing, then equipment and vehicles that are present on the 

property may be fenced or screened by the use of Non-opaque materials, approved in 

writing, by the Board; however, all equipment, vehicles, materials and property visible 

through the fence/screen must be continuously maintained in a manner that is clean, 

organized and aesthetically acceptable to those who view the property through the 

fences/screen; or (2) Water towers, storage tanks, equipment, exhaust fans, skylights, 

cooling towers, vents, pallet storage, refuse collection receptacles or compacting 

equipment, transformers, and all other structures or equipment related to a building on the 

property shall be architecturally compatible with the building or shall be effectively 

01/09/2015 24



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

12 

 

shielded from public view and view of adjacent properties by the use of Opaque screening 

or fencing materials, and the design, location and screening for same shall be approved, in 

writing, by the Board before construction or erection of such structures or placement of 

such equipment; and (3) All scrap materials, waste, trash, junk, storage of items, inventory, 

parts, and pallets, etc., must be completely screened from view of the public and adjacent 

properties by use of Opaque screening, fencing or design elements and materials.  

 

The City and Board will strictly enforce the screening/fencing provisions detailed herein.  

 

I. DRIVEWAYS: 

 

No driveway shall be permitted within fifty (50) feet of a street intersection.  

 

J. OUTSIDE STORAGE OR OPERATIONS: 

 

Outside storage or operations on any tracts shall be strictly limited to the rear two-thirds 

(2/3) of the property, and shall be completely screened from the street, public view and/or 

adjacent properties, by use of Opaque screening/fencing, as defined herein. Under no 

circumstances shall any materials or equipment be stored within sixty (60) feet of any 

street. 

 

Screening specifications shall be approved in writing by BEDC, prior to construction, as 

part of the site and building review and approval process, and if appropriate may be varied 

by the Board, upon application for same. No boat, trailer, camper, home trailer, bus, or 

other recreational vehicle shall be parked or stored, either permanently or semi-

permanently (i.e., on an “off-and-on” basis), on any property in the Park, unless such items 

are completely screened in the manner described above, using Opaque screening, as 

defined herein. No residential-type occupancy of trailers, campers, recreational vehicles, 

etc., is allowed at any time in the Park. Any outside storage shall be well-secured and 

properly lighted so as not to invite criminal activity in the Industrial Park.  

 

K. LOADING DOCKS: 
 

Loading docks will be permitted on any side of the primary building, but delivery vehicle 

loading and unloading shall occur only within the property and not on, or from, a public 

street. 

 

L. SIGNS: 
 

All signs shall be designed, located and installed in full compliance with the City’s Code 

of Ordinances. (See, Bastrop Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3, Section 3.20.001, et seq., 

which may be amended from time to time.) All requests for variances to the Sign Code, for 

signs installed in the Park, shall be heard and decided solely by the BEDC Board, and not 

by the Municipal Sign Review Board or City Council.  

01/09/2015 25



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

13 

 

 

M. EXTERIOR ILLUMINATION: 
 

Illumination will be required on all parking areas and walkways between buildings and 

parking areas unless otherwise waived or modified by BEDC. No wooden poles may be 

used in connection with exterior illumination. Additionally, all buildings shall have exterior 

illumination facilities for their front entrance. Upon completion of any building, any such 

illumination facilities required by these covenants which are located on the property on 

which the building is constructed shall remain in operation at a minimum from dusk until 

10:00 p.m. each night. Exterior illumination shall be designed to light only buildings, 

parking areas, and walkways and shall not produce glare on adjacent streets or lots. All 

ground level floodlighting fixtures shall be depressed or screened from public view. 

 

N. UTILITIES EASEMENTS: 

 

No structure shall be erected on any easement as reserved on the plat and as provided on 

the deeds of conveyance on any particular lot. No improvements may be placed within 

such easements without prior written approval of BEDC. Easements may be crossed by 

improvements providing the property owner receives the necessary approval in advance 

from any utility company or municipal district agency providing services via the said 

easement. 

 

O. GARBAGE AND REFUSE DISPOSAL: 
 

No lot shall be used or maintained as a dumping ground for trash or garbage. Trash, 

garbage, and other waste products shall be kept in sanitary containers approved by the City 

of Bastrop. All incinerators or other equipment for storage, compaction, or disposal of such 

materials shall be kept in a clean and sanitary condition, maintained and serviced regularly.  

Dumpsters shall be adequate in size to handle all waste produced by the business operation 

and, at no time, may any refuse or garbage be placed outside of the trash receptacles or 

dumpsters on any tract.  

 

The City’s Code of Ordinances, related to parking, health and safety, offenses and 

nuisances, subdivision and zoning all apply in the Park, and the City and BEDC shall 

enforce same within the Park.  In the event of ambiguity or an unintended conflict between 

the City Code and the contents of these Protective Covenants, then the City’s Code will 

control.      

 

P. LIVESTOCK AND POULTRY: 
 

No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred, or kept on any lot or 

part of any lot. 

 

01/09/2015 26



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

14 

 

Q. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS REQUIRED IN THE INDUSTRIAL 

PARK: 
 

1. Odorous Matter 

 

a. No manufacturing or warehouse/distribution use shall be located or 

operated within the Industrial Park which emits odorous matter from a 

source of operation where the odorous matter exceeds the odor threshold at 

the boundary property line or any point beyond the tract on which such use 

or operation is located. The Board reserves the right to apply any State, 

Federal or local standard it deems appropriate and applicable to the 

circumstances at hand.  

 

2. Smoke and Particulate Matter 

 

a. Industrial Limits:  No industrial operation or use shall cause, or allow the 

emission of, air contaminants which, at the emission point or within the 

bounds of the property, are in violation of the standards, including Effect 

Screening Levels, specified by the Texas Department of Health or other 

State regulatory agency. The Board reserves the right to apply any State, 

Federal or local standard it deems appropriate and applicable to the 

circumstances at hand. 

 

3. Glare 

 

a. No use or operation shall be located or conducted so as to produce intense 

glare or direct illumination, from a visible source of illumination or glare, 

across the property line boundary, nor shall any such glare or light be of 

such intensity as to create a nuisance or detract from the use and enjoyment 

of adjacent property. 

 

4. Noise 

 

a. All operations in the Industrial Park shall comply with the noise levels 

detailed in the City’s Code of Ordinances, as applicable to nonresidential 

properties.  

 

5. Water Pollution 

 

a. No emission of water from any use in the Industrial Park, whether by entry 

into the municipal wastewater system, storm water control system, a stream 

or other body of water, shall be permitted, if the quality of such water 

violates the laws of the State of Texas or the United States, or produces a 

01/09/2015 27



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

15 

 

nuisance or hazard to the public or the municipal wastewater or water 

systems. 

 

6. Toxic and Noxious Matter 

 

a. No operation or use permitted under the terms of these covenants shall emit 

toxic or noxious matter in concentrations across the property line boundary 

of the tract on which such operation or use is located. The Board reserves 

the right to apply any State, Federal or local standard it deems appropriate 

and applicable to the circumstances at hand, related to toxic and noxious 

materials, matters and/or conditions in the Park. 

 

7. Combustible or Explosive and Hazardous Material 

 

a. No use involving the manufacture or storage of petrochemical compounds 

or products which decompose by detonation shall be permitted, except that 

chlorates, perchlorates, phosphorous, and similar substances and 

compounds in quantities of one (1) gallon or less for use by industry, 

laboratories, biotechnology companies, or wholesalers may be permitted 

when approved by BEDC. The storage of all flammable liquids and 

materials, such as pyroxylin plastics, nitrocellulose film solvents, and 

petrochemical products for industrial purposes, shall be allowed only with 

the prior approval of the BEDC, and in full compliance with all applicable 

regulations and laws. 

 

8. Vibration 

 

a. No use permitted under the terms of these covenants shall at any time create 

such earth- or air-borne vibration which, when measured at the property line 

boundary of the source of operation, exceeds the limits of the displacement 

set forth below: 

 

Displacement Limits for Vibration 

 

b. Frequency Cycles per Second   Displacement in Inches 

  0 to 10     .0010 

10 to 20     .0007 

20 to 30     .0005 

30 to 40     .0004 

40 and over     .0003 

 

The Board reserves the right to apply any State, Federal or local standard it deems 

appropriate and applicable to the circumstances at hand, for operations causing 

vibration in the Industrial Park. 

01/09/2015 28



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

16 

 

 

9. Portable Restrooms.  The use of portable restrooms is prohibited in the Park after 

a permanent Certificate of Occupancy has been issued by the City for the building 

on a tract.  

 

R. MAINTENANCE: 

 

Owners and occupants (including lessees) of any parcel of land in the Industrial Park shall 

jointly and severally have the duty and responsibility, at their sole cost and expense, to 

keep that part of the Industrial Park so owned or occupied, including buildings, 

improvements, grounds or drainage easements, or other rights-of-way incident thereto, in 

a well-maintained, safe, secure, clean, and attractive condition at all times. Such 

maintenance includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

 

1. Prompt removal of all litter, trash, refuse, and wastes. 

2. Lawn mowing on a regular basis. 

3. Tree and shrub pruning. 

4. Watering by means of an irrigation lawn sprinkler system or hand watering as 

needed. 

5. Installing adequate exterior lighting and maintaining mechanical facilities in 

working order. 

6. Keeping lawn and garden areas in good condition, and any adjoining railroad 

rights-of-way or drainage ditches free of weeds and refuse. 

7. Removing and replacing any dead plant material. 

8. Keeping vacant land well-maintained for a depth of at least fifteen (15) feet 

from a street and right-of-way, and the entire site free of trash and tall weeds. 

9. Keeping parking areas, driveways, and roads in good repair. 

10. Complying with all governmental health and police requirements. 

11. Striping of parking areas and repairing of paved improvements and enclosures 

including fencing and gates. 

12. Repair of exterior damages to improvements. 

 

S. ENFORCEMENT: 

 

1. If, in the opinion of the BEDC, the owner or occupant, as applicable, of any tract 

or parcel of land in the Industrial Park shall fail to keep the tract or parcel 

maintained in compliance with the above-listed minimum provisions, the owner or 

occupant shall be notified of the deficiency by the Board or the City. If within ten 

(10) days from such notice, remedial activities to correct the deficiency have not 

begun to restore the tract or parcel to a safe, clean, attractive, and lawful condition, 

BEDC and/or the City shall have the right to perform such necessary remedial 

activities. All cost and expense incurred thereby shall be reimbursed by the owner 

and/or occupant of the tract or parcel of land. If such owner and/or occupant shall 

fail to so reimburse BEDC within thirty (30) days from the receipt of any invoice 

01/09/2015 29



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

17 

 

covering such cost and expense, then such amount of cost and expense shall be a 

debt of such Owner and/or Occupant, shall bear interest at the highest maximum 

rate allowed by law, and shall attach to said parcel of land as a lien against same. If 

deemed appropriate for recoupment of costs expended by the City to eliminate 

nuisances threatening the public safety, the costs incurred may be added onto the 

City utility bills of the occupant causing the nuisance in the Park. 

 

2. The BEDC may file suit in the appropriate court to enjoin any violation of these 

covenants, and may seek to have the court assess the maximum penalty allowed by 

law, per day, of violation.  

 

3. All Landowners in the Industrial Park are required to fully comply with all 

applicable City of Bastrop Code of Ordinances, regulations and policies, and failure 

to do so will result in the City initiating enforcement action and seeking penalties, 

as set forth in the Code.   

 

4. The City specifically retains the right to have the City exercise code enforcement 

activities in the Industrial Park, which may subject violators to fines and Municipal 

Court processes and penalties.   

 

T. VARIANCES: 
 

Upon either the request of a Landowner or the Board of Directors, the BEDC may grant 

variances to the strict application of these restrictions and covenants when it is found that 

such variances will not affect the overall intent of these restrictions and covenants and a 

variance will not cause injury or negative impact on adjacent landowners, lessees, or 

tenants, or the overall quality of the Industrial Park. Applications for variances must be 

filed with BEDC, and must detail what hardship(s) will result to applicant from the strict 

application of these restrictions and covenants, which hardship(s) shall not be solely 

‘economic’ and shall not be self-inflicted by the applicant. The BEDC Board shall hold a 

public hearing on any requested variance, in accordance with the City of Bastrop notice 

and public hearing process and requirements. The decision of the BEDC on all variance 

requests shall be final, with no right of appeal to another body or entity.  

 

U. AMENDMENT OF COVENANTS: 
 

These covenants and restrictions may be unilaterally amended, from time to time, by 

BEDC, provided BEDC continues to retain ownership of at least fifty-one percent (51%) 

of the land area of the Industrial Park. After BEDC owns less than fifty-one percent (51%) 

of the land area in the Industrial Park, amendments to these covenants and restrictions may 

only be made by majority vote of the property owners in the Industrial Park, at a properly 

notified meeting called for the purpose of evaluating and acting on same. 

 

 

01/09/2015 30



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE  

PROTECTIVE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

BASTROP BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL PARK 

 

 

18 

 

Executed this _________ day of _________________________, _____. 

 

 

BEDC: 

 

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 

 

 

 

By:  ______________________________________ 

 Name:  Steve Mills  

 Title:  Chairman 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A – Description of Property Subject to Declaration of Protective Covenants, 

Conditions, and Restrictions 

 

Exhibit B – Map identifying Areas A and B, in the Park 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

     § 

COUNTY OF BASTROP  § 

 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _________ day of 

_______________, ______, by Steve Mills, Chairman, Bastrop Economic Development 

Corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires:  ___________________, 20____ 

01/09/2015 31



DALE L. OLSON 
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR 

711 WATER STREET 
BASTROP, TEXAS 78602 

512 (321-5476) 
 
FIELD NOTES FOR A 265.403 ACRE TRACT IN THE BASTROP TOWN TRACT AND 
THE STEPHEN F. AUSTIN SURVEY, A-2, IN BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Being a 265.403 acre tract or parcel of land out of and being a part of the BASTROP 
TOWN TRACT, A-11, and the Stephen F. Austin Survey, A-2, in Bastrop County, 
Texas, and being a part of that certain 326 acre tract devised to Mrs. Mary Bell Turner 
Gore by will of Mrs. T. C. Osborn probated on June 22, 1955, and recorded in Vol. 4, 
Pg. 87, Probate Minutes of Bastrop County, and by will of Kathryn Belle Turner 
probated on November 19, 1963 recorded in Vol. 11, Pg. 280, Probate Minutes of 
Bastrop County, Texas. Herein described tract or parcel being more particularly 
described by metes and bounds as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 5/8 inch iron rod found at a fence corner, the southeast corner 
of the before mentioned 326 acre tract, an inner corner of Tahitian Village, Unit 5, a 
Subdivision recorded in Plat Cabinet No. 1, Pg. 101A-106B, Bastrop County Plat 
Records, for the southeast corner of this tract. 

THENCE with the south line of the said 326 acre tract, the north line of Tahitian 
Village, Unit 5, N 75 deg. 09 min. 31 sec. W, 3129.72 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at 
a fence corner where same intersects the east line of the M. K. & T. Railroad, the 
northwest corner of Tahitian Village, Unit 5, for the southwest corner of this tract.  

THENCE with the east line of the M. K. & T. Railroad, N 14 deg. 44 min. 00 sec. 
E, 3030.36 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set in the south line of the before mentioned 
Bastrop Town Tract, the north line of the Stephen F. Austin Survey, for an angle corner 
of this tract. 

THENCE with the south line of the Bastrop Town Tract, the north line of the 
Stephen F. Austin Survey, N 75 deg. 16 min. 00 sec. W, 22.23 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod 
set for an angle corner of this tract. 

THENCE continuing with the east line of the M. K. & T. Railroad, N 14 deg. 44 
min. 06 sec. E, 405.50 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set at a the beginning at a curve to the 
left. 

THENCE continuing with the east line of the M. K. & T. Railroad right of way 
along a curve to the left whose radius is 2892.57 feet; whose central angle is 04 deg. 39 
min. 28 sec.; whose long chord bears N 12 deg. 21 min. 38 sec. E, 235.08 feet; 235.15 
feet along the arc to a 1/2 inch iron rod found where same intersects the south line of 
Mill Street, for the northwest corner of this tract. 

THENCE with the south line of Mill Street, N 90 deg. 00 min. 00 sec. E, 419.87 
feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set where same intersects the center of Marion Street, for an 
angle corner of this tract. 

THENCE with the center of Marion Street, S 00 deg. 04 min. 09 sec. W, 388.98 
feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set where same intersects the south line of South Street, for 
an interior corner of this tract. 

01/09/2015 32



THENCE with the south line of South Street, S 89 deg. 59 min. 21 sec. E, 
1326.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the northwest corner of that certain lot or 
parcel described as Tract 2 in a Sheriff's Deed to T. C. Steiner recorded in Vol. 496, Pg. 
754, Bastrop County Deed Records, for an angle corner of this tract. Said point being in 
the north line of Building Block No. 149, in said Town Tract. 

THENCE with the west line of the Steiner lot, S 07 deg. 04 min. 48 sec. E, 
155.50 feet to the southwest corner of same, a 1/2 inch iron rod found for an interior 
corner of this tract. 

THENCE with the south line of the Steiner lot, S 83 deg. 32 min. 42 sec. E, 
184.00 feet to the southeast corner of same, a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the west line of 
Clay Street, the east line of Building Block No. 149, for an interior corner of this tract. 

THENCE with the west line of Clay Street, the east line of Building Block No. 149, 
the east line of the Steiner lot, N 00 deg. 00 min. 00 sec. E, 175.00 feet to a 1/2 inch 
iron rod found where same intersects the south line of South Street, for an angle corner 
of this tract. Said point being the northeast corner of Building Block No. 149. 

THENCE with the south line of South Street, N 90 deg. 00 min. 00 sec. E, 388.88 
feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set where same intersects the east line of Pitt Street for an 
angle corner of this tract. Said point being near an old fence corner and being the 
northwest corner of a small tract in Building Block No. 151 owned by the City of Bastrop. 

THENCE with the average of an old crooked fence, S 81 deg. 11 min. 31 sec. E, 
289.52 feet to a 60d nail set in a 12 inch elm fence angle; S 58 deg. 29 min. 43 sec. E, 
172.65 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod set; S 43 deg. 59 min. 09 sec. E, 184.11 feet to a 5/8 
inch iron rod set; S 32 deg. 52 min. 20 sec. E, 185.20 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at 
a fence corner; S 06 deg. 07 min. 52 sec. E, 55.19 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at a 
fence corner, an angle corner of Pine Forest, Unit 6, a Subdivision as recorded in Plat 
Cabinet 1, Pg. 165B-172A, Bastrop County Plat Records for a northeast corner of this 
tract. 

THENCE with the west line of Pine Forest, Unit 6, the east line of the said 326 
acre tract, S 11 deg. 46 min. 12 sec. W, 646.55 feet to a concrete monument found; S 
14 deg. 40 min. 06 sec. W, 2590.60 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the southwest 
corner of Pine Forest , Unit 6, an angle corner of Tahitian Village, Unit 5, for an angle 
corner of this tract. 

THENCE continuing with the east line of the said 326 acre tract and an upper 
west line of Tahitian Village, Unit 5, S 14 deg. 48 min. 07 sec. W, 366.19 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 265.403 acres of land. 
 
 
 
 
Dale L. Olson 
Registered Professional 
Land Surveyor 
Reg. No. 1753 

01/09/2015 33



01/09/2015 34



B.E.D.C.  

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM   C4___  

 

 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  January 7, 2015_   
         

MEETING DATE: _   January 12, 2015_       
 

 

 

1. Agenda Item: Consideration, discussion and possible action on approval of the proposed 

revisions to the Bastrop EDC’s Bylaws. 
   
2.  Party Making Request:  Mike Talbot, Interim BEDC Executive Director    

   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes      X         No     

  
A committee composed of Mike Talbot, JC Brown, Gary Schiff, Pat Crawford, Ken Kesselus and Angela 
Ryan met on 10/29/14 to review and make necessary changes to the current BEDC Bylaws. Ms. Brown 
made the suggested changes and the “redlined” version of the revised BEDC Bylaws was reviewed at the 
11/17/14 Board meeting. A “clean” copy of the revised Bylaws is included for the Board’s review and 
possible approval. 
 

4.  Policy Implication:  _________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  Budgeted:  _________Yes   __________No      X N/A 

 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 

 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 

       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 

6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  _____________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 

     a)  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

     b)  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

     c)  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  Staff Recommendation:   

 

9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 

 

10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 

 

11. Action Taken:              

               

 

01/09/2015 35



 1 

SEVENTH AMENDED BYLAWS OF 

 

THE BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 

OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 

 

A NON-PROFIT CORPORATION 
 

 

SECTION 1 

OFFICES 

 

1.01 Registered Office and Registered Agent 

 

The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the State of Texas a 

registered office, and a registered agent whose office is identical with such registered 

office, as required by the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act.  The Board of Directors 

may, from time to time, change the registered office, provided that such change is 

appropriately reflected in these Bylaws and in the Articles of Incorporation, and filed 

with the Secretary of State. 

 

The registered office of the Corporation shall be 903 Main Street, Bastrop, Texas, 

78602, and the registered agent shall be the current Executive Director of the 

Corporation, whose mailing address is 903 Main Street, Bastrop, Texas, 78602, and who 

may be served with process at 903 Main Street, Bastrop, Texas, 78602. 

 

1.02 Principal Office 

 

The principal office of the Corporation in the State of Texas shall be located at 903 

Main Street, City of Bastrop, County of Bastrop, and it shall be identical with the 

registered office of the Corporation. 

 

SECTION II 

PURPOSES 

 

2.01 Purposes 

 

The Corporation is a non-profit corporation specifically governed by the Texas 

Development Corporation Act of 1979, Local Government Code, Subchapter A, Sections 

501.001 and 505.001, et seq., as amended (hereinafter referred to as the "Act").  The 

purpose of the Corporation shall be to promote, assist, and enhance economic 

development in accordance with its Articles of Incorporation, and to engage in any and 

all activities authorized by the Act, as amended.  The Corporation shall have all of the 

powers enumerated in the Act, except as limited by these Bylaws, its Articles of 

Incorporation, or vote of the City Council. 

 

01/09/2015 36



 2 

SECTION III 

MEMBERS 

 

3.01 Members 

 

The Corporation shall have no members. 

 

SECTION IV 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

4.01 Board of Directors 

 

The business and affairs of the Corporation and all corporate powers shall be 

exercised by or under authority of the Board of Directors (the "Board"), appointed by the 

governing body of the City of Bastrop, and subject to applicable limitations imposed by 

the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, the Texas Business Corporation Act, the Texas 

Development Corporation Act, its Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws.  The Board 

may, by contract, resolution, or otherwise, provide general or limited special power and 

authority to the officers and employees of the Corporation to transact the general business 

or any special business of the Corporation, and may give powers of attorney to agents of 

the Corporation to transact any special business requiring such authorization. 

 

4.02 Number, Qualification and Terms of Service 

 

The authorized number of Directors of this Board shall be seven (7).  The City 

Council shall appoint the Directors of the Corporation in accordance with the Act and the 

City’s Home Rule Charter, as each may be amended.  The membership of the Board of 

Directors shall include the Mayor (provided that the Mayor may, pursuant to the 

appointment authority set forth in the Home Rule Charter, appoint another City Council 

member to take his/her place on the Board and provided, further, that the Mayor may, at 

his/her sole discretion, reestablish his/her service on the Board, thereby replacing the City 

Council member previously appointed to serve in his/her stead, as the Mayor deems 

appropriate) and may include up to two (2) other City Council members; however, in no 

event shall there be more than three (3) members of the Board of Directors who are also 

members of the City Council.  At least four (4) Directors of the Board shall not be 

officers or employees of the City of Bastrop or members of its City Council, and these 

four (4) Directors shall be referred to as “Public Members” and/or as “Public Directors” 

of the Board of Directors.   

 

The terms of office for the Directors of the Board are as follows:  (a) The term of 

Directors who are also members of the City Council, shall be two (2) years and shall for 

those two (2) years will run concurrently with the Council member’s term of elected 

office; (b) The terms of Public Members shall vary in length, with no term exceeding two 

(2) years, and such Public Member shall be appointed by the City Council for a term 

duration which results in staggered periods of service for such Directors on the Board.  

Directors may be removed at any time by vote of the City Council.  Any Director who is 

01/09/2015 37



 3 

a member of the governing body of the City shall cease to be a Director at the time he or 

she ceases to be a member of the City Council.  

 

All Directors must be residents of the City of Bastrop or Bastrop County with no 

more than one Director residing outside the municipal corporate city limits but within 

Bastrop County, Texas. 

 

The City Council shall consider an individual's experience, accomplishments, and 

educational background in appointing members to the Board, to ensure that the interests 

and concerns of all segments of the community are considered. 

 

The City Manager of Bastrop may be appointed by the City Council to be a non-

voting ex officio member of the Board of Directors, and may attend all meetings of the 

Board.  The City Manager shall provide staff assistance and administrative support to the 

Board, as needed.  When the City Manager participates in Board activities as a non-

voting ex officio member, his or her participation shall not count as one of the seven (7) 

Board of Director positions. 

 

4.03 Bonds 

 

The Chairman of the Board, Vice- Chairman, and Treasurer of the Board shall give 

an official bond in the sum of not less than One Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars 

($100,000).  The bonds referred in this section shall be considered for the faithful 

accounting of all monies and things of value coming into the hands of such officers.  The 

bonds shall be procured from some regularly accredited surety company authorized to do 

business in the State.  The premiums thereafter shall be paid by the Corporation.  A copy 

of each officers bond shall be filed with the Secretary of State.   

 

4.04 General Duties of the Board 

 

The Board is hereby required to perform the following duties: 

 

1. The Board shall develop an overall economic development plan for the City, 

which shall include an annual budget, and the goals which the Board deems 

necessary to accomplish its overall economic development plan.  Such plan must 

be approved by the City Council of the City of Bastrop before being adopted. 

 

The overall development plan developed by the Board shall be one that includes 

at least the following elements: 

 

a) An economic development strategy to permanently bolster the business 

climate throughout the City. 

 

b) Strategies to fully develop and utilize the assets of the City which enhance 

economic development. 

 

01/09/2015 38



 4 

c) Strategies to improve the communication, cooperation, and coordination 

of public, private, municipal and academic resources which are necessary 

to develop and enhance business opportunities for all citizens of Bastrop.   

 

d) Assurance of accountability of all revenue and expenditures of the 

Corporation.  

 

e) Identification of strategies and implementation of those strategies for 

direct economic development, as stipulated in this Section. 

 

f) An annual work plan outlining the activities, tasks, projects or programs to 

be undertaken by the Board during the upcoming fiscal year.  The annual 

work plan shall be submitted with the annual budget as outlined in Article 

7.02 of these Bylaws. 

 

2. The Board shall review and update its overall economic development plan each 

year to ensure that said plan is up to date with the current economic climate and is 

capable of meeting Bastrop's current economic development needs. 

 

3. The Board shall expend, in accordance with all applicable laws, the funds 

received by it on the implementation of its overall economic development plan 

and on direct economic development.  Such expenditures will have a direct 

benefit to the citizens of Bastrop.  Before expending funds to undertake a project, 

the Corporation shall hold public hearing(s) on the proposed project in 

compliance with the requirements of the then applicable State law and other 

applicable local regulations, if any. 

 

As used in this article, "direct economic development" shall mean projects or 

programs that directly accomplish or aid in the accomplishment of creating new 

jobs or retaining existing jobs, including educational, job training or planning and 

research activities necessary to promote job creation or retention.  The 

Corporation's focus for direct economic development will be primarily in the 

areas of: 

 

a. Job and Investment Creation 

b. Business Retention and Expansion 

c. Infrastructure Development  

d. Work Force Development 

 

4. The Board of Directors shall make a detailed annual report to the City Council of 

Bastrop and at such other times as requested by the City Council.  Such report 

shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 

a) A review of all expenditures made by the Board in connection with their 

activities involving implementation of its overall economic development 

01/09/2015 39



 5 

plan and for direct economic development as detailed in this article, 

together with a report of all other expenditures made by the Board. 

 

b) A review of the accomplishments of the Board in the area of direct 

economic development. 

 

c) The policies and strategy followed by the Board in relation to direct 

economic development, together with any new or proposed changes in 

these policies and strategy. 

 

d) The activities of the Board for the budget year addressed in the annual 

report, together with any proposed change in activity relating to direct 

economic development. 

 

e) A review of the activities of the Board in areas of endeavor other than 

direct economic development, together with any proposed changes in such 

activities. 

 

f) The annual required report shall be made to the City Council no later than 

September 1st of each year. 

 

g) The annual report shall be presented to the City Council for its review. 

 

4.05 Vacancies 

 

Any vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors through death, resignation, 

removal, or otherwise shall be filled pursuant to the City Code of Ordinances, Sections 

1.04.001 and 1.04.002, as amended from time to time, for terms not to exceed, two (2) 

years from the date of appointment, and for a length of time that results in staggered the 

terms of service.    Directors may be removed at any time by majority vote of the City 

Council. 

 

4.06 Meetings 

 

The Board shall hold a regular meeting within the municipal limits of Bastrop on 

the third Monday of each month (except holidays), or upon a date and time determined to 

be most convenient to the majority of Directors, unless there is a determination by the 

Chair of the Board that there is insufficient pending business for the Board to consider.  

In the event that a determination is made not to hold the regularly scheduled monthly 

meeting, then the Board shall provide notice to the public of the cancellation by posting a 

cancellation notice, in a timely fashion, and in a place generally accessible to the public.    

The Board may hold additional special meetings during a month, as may be necessary for 

the transaction of the Board’s business.  Such special meetings may be called, as 

necessary, by either: (1) the request of the Chairman of the Board, or (2) the request of 

any three Board members.  The requesting party(ies) shall make such requests, in writing, 

to the Executive Director of the EDC, who shall then provide timely notice to the 

01/09/2015 40



 6 

members and public regarding same. All meetings of the Board shall provide notice 

thereof as provided and set forth in Chapter 551, Texas Government Code (The Texas 

Open Meetings Act).  Any member of the Board may request that the Chair place an item 

on the Board's agenda, and such requests shall be made no later than five (5) days prior to 

the date of the Board meeting.   

 

 Notice of any meeting shall be given to the public in accordance with the 

requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act.  The notice shall contain information 

regarding the particular time, date, and location of the meeting and the agenda to be 

considered.  All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Texas Open 

Meetings Act. 

 

 The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be in May, June or July of 

each year, at the offices of the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation, Bastrop, 

Texas. 

 

4.07 Attendance 

 

Regular attendance of the Board meetings is required of all Directors, and the 

attendance record of each Director shall be submitted to the Council prior to any 

reappointment to the Board.  Board attendance requirements, notice of absences and 

attendance records shall comply with City Code of Ordinance Section 1.02.002 (b), as 

amended from time to time.  

 

4.08 Quorum 

 

For the purpose of convening a meeting, a simple majority of the Directors then 

serving on the Board shall constitute a quorum.  For purposes of transacting the business 

of the Corporation at any meeting, a simple majority of the appointed Directors shall 

constitute a quorum.  If there is an insufficient number of Directors present to constitute a 

quorum, the presiding officer shall adjourn the meeting.   

 

4.09 Compensation 

 

The duly appointed Directors of the Board shall serve without compensation, but 

may be reimbursed for actual cost of travel, lodging and incidental expenses as 

authorized by the Board, in accordance with State law. 

 

4.10 Voting; Action of the Board of Directors 

 

Directors must be present in order to vote at any meeting.  Unless otherwise 

provided in these Bylaws or in the Articles of Incorporation, or as required by law, the act 

of a simple majority of the Directors present at any meeting for which a quorum is 

present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.  In the event that a Director is aware of 

a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest, with regard to any particular vote, 

the Director shall bring the same to the attention of the Board and shall abstain from the 

01/09/2015 41



 7 

vote.  In absence of a conflict of interest, each Director present at the meeting shall vote 

for or against each question brought before the Board.  The Board’s Directors are subject 

to the City’s Code of Ethics, set forth in the City’s Code of Ordinances, Article 1.15, et 

seq., and shall conform thereto for purposes of addressing potential and/or actual 

conflicts of interest.  

 

4.11 Board's Relationship with City Council 

 

In accordance with State law, the City Council may require that the Corporation 

be responsible to it for the proper discharge of its duties.  All policies for program 

administration shall be submitted for City Council approval, and the Board shall 

administer said programs accordingly.  The Board shall determine its policies and 

direction within the limitations of the duties imposed by applicable laws, its Articles of 

Incorporation, these Bylaws, contracts entered into with the City and others, and budget 

and fiduciary responsibilities. 

 

4.12 Board's Relationship with Administrative Departments of the City 

 

Any request for services made to the administrative departments of the City shall 

be made by the Board or its designee in writing to the City Manager.  The City Manager 

may approve such request for assistance from the Board, subject to terms acceptable to 

the Board and the City Manager.   

 

Any requests for legal assistance may be made by the Board or its designee to the 

City Attorney.  When such services are unavailable, the Board may obtain other counsel. 

 

 

SECTION V 

OFFICERS 

 

5.01 Officers of the Corporation 

 

The elected officers of the Corporation shall be a Chairman of the Board, Vice 

Chairman, Secretary, and Treasurer.  The Board may appoint one or more Assistant 

Secretaries or one or more Assistant Treasurers as it may consider desirable.  Such 

officers shall have the authority and shall perform the duties of the office as the Board 

may from time to time prescribe or as the Secretary or Treasurer may from time to time 

delegate to his or her respective Assistant.  Any two (2) offices may be held by the same 

person, except the office of Chairman of the Board. 

 

5.02 Selection of Officers 

 

The Board shall appoint from among its Directors individuals to hold the offices 

of Chairman of the Board, Vice-Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer.  The term of office 

for each of these Officers shall always be for a period of one year, provided, however, 

that such Officers shall continue to serve until the election of their successors. 

01/09/2015 42



 8 

 

5.03 Vacancies in Offices  

 

Vacancies in any office which occur by reason of death, resignation, 

disqualification, removal, or otherwise, shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the 

unexpired portion of the term of that office, in the same manner as other officers are 

appointed by the Board. 

 

5.04 Chairman of the Board 

 

The Chairman of the Board shall: 

 

1. Preside over all meetings of the Board. 

 

2. Have the right to vote on all matters coming before the Board. 

 

3. Have the authority, upon notice to the Directors of the Board, to call a 

special meeting of the Board, when in his or her judgment such meeting is 

required. 

 

4. Have the authority to appoint ad hoc committees of the Board, which may 

address issues of a temporary nature of concern or which have a temporary 

effect on the business of the Board. 

 

5. Have the authority to appoint advisory committees to the Board to further 

the overall development plan of the Board.   

 

In addition to the above mentioned duties, the Chairman of the Board shall sign 

with the co-signature of the Secretary of the Board, any deed mortgage, bonds, contracts, 

or other instruments which the Board of Directors has approved, unless the execution of 

said document has been expressly delegated to some other officer or agent of the 

Corporation by appropriate Board resolution, by a specific provision of these Bylaws, or 

by statute.  In general, the Chairman of the Board shall perform all duties incident to the 

office, and such other duties as shall be prescribed from time to time by the Board of 

Directors. 

 

5.05 Vice-Chairman 

 

In the absence of the Chairman of the Board, or in the event of his or her inability 

to act, the Vice-Chairman shall perform the duties of the Chairman of the Board.  When 

so acting, the Vice-Chairman shall have all power of and be subject to all the same 

restrictions as those incumbent upon the Chairman of the Board.  The Vice-Chairman 

shall also perform other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the 

Chairman of the Board. 

 

5.06 Secretary 

01/09/2015 43



 9 

 

The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all proceedings of the Board of Directors 

and make a proper record of the same, which shall be attested by the Secretary.  The 

Secretary shall keep such books as may be required by the Board of Directors, and shall 

perform such other duties as may be required by the Board of Directors.  The Secretary 

shall cause notices to be posted of all Board meetings in accordance with the Texas Open 

Meetings Act. 

 

5.07 Treasurer 

 

The Treasurer shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to that office and 

such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Chairman of 

the Board, or the Board in general.  The Treasurer shall receive and give receipt for 

money due and payable to the Corporation and shall deposit such monies received by the 

Corporation, in accordance with Article VII of these Bylaws, if such monies are not 

directly deposited in the Corporation’s accounts. 

 

5.08 Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers 

 

The Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers, if any, shall in general, 

perform such duties as may be assigned to them by the Secretary or the Treasurer, or by 

the Chairman of the Board or the Board of Directors. 

 

5.09 Contracts for Service 

 

The Corporation may, with approval of the City Council, contract with any 

qualified and appropriate person, association, corporation or governmental entity to 

perform and discharge designated tasks which will aid or assist the Board in the 

performance of its duties.  However, no such contract shall ever be approved or entered 

into which seeks or attempts to divest the Board of Directors of its discretion and policy-

making functions in discharging the duties herein above set forth in this section. 

 

5.10 Executive Director 

  

The Board shall create the position of Executive Director, who shall be the Chief 

Administrative Officer of the Corporation and who shall serve at the pleasure of the 

Board.  The Board shall be responsible for hiring the Executive Director.  The Executive 

Director shall have responsibility for all day to day activities of the Corporation, and shall 

be responsible for all applicable administrative requirements of its Articles of 

Incorporation, these Bylaws, and the Act, as amended.  The Executive Director may have 

a staff to assist in the carrying out of his responsibilities, and the hiring of any staff shall 

require Board approval.  The Executive Director shall have the authority to make 

purchases and sign contracts up to the value of five thousand dollars ($5,000), on behalf 

of the Board, with the knowledge and approval of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman. 

 

The Board shall develop a job description for the Executive Director position, and 

01/09/2015 44



 10 

the Executive Director shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.  The Board 

shall develop a performance review schedule and criteria for review, and shall review the 

performance of the Executive Director based upon the schedule and criteria.  Nothing in 

this section shall be construed to convey that the Executive Director position is anything 

other than an at-will position as defined by the Texas Workforce Commission. The 

Executive Director and staff shall be required to follow all other current Personnel 

Policies of the City of Bastrop, and for such purposes, the Executive Director shall be 

under the same provisions as those for the City Manager. 

 

 

SECTION VI 

COMMITTEES 

 

The Board may constitute from time to time committees of the Board that are 

deemed necessary or appropriate.  No such committee shall have independent authority to 

act for or in the stead of the Board. 

 

 

SECTION VII 

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 

 

The Corporation shall contract with the City for financial and accounting services.  

The Corporation's financing and accounting records shall be maintained according to the 

following guidelines. 

 

7.01 Fiscal Year 

 

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on October 1 and end on September 

30 of the following year. 

 

7.02 Budget 

 

The Board of Directors shall cause to be prepared, and shall submit to the City 

Council of the City of Bastrop, a budget for the forthcoming fiscal year, and in 

accordance with the annual budget preparation schedule set forth by the City Manager.  

The budget shall be submitted to the City Manager for inclusion in the annual budget 

presentation to the City Council.  The budget proposed for adoption shall include the 

projected operating expenses, and such other budgetary information as shall be useful to 

or appropriate for the Board of Directors and the City Council.  No budget amendments 

shall become effective without City Council approval.  No expenditures of funds shall be 

made by any Officer, employee or agent of the Corporation unless such expenditure is 

provided for in the approved budget of the Corporation that has been approved by the 

City Council. 

 

7.03 Contracts 

 

01/09/2015 45



 11 

As provided in Article V above, the Chairman of the Board and Secretary shall 

execute any contracts or other instruments which the Board has approved and authorized 

to be executed, provided, however, that the Board may by appropriate resolution, 

authorize any other officer or officers or any other agent or agents, including the 

Executive Director, to enter into contracts or execute and deliver any instrument in the 

name and on behalf of the Corporation.  Such authority may be confined to specific 

instances or defined in general terms.  When appropriate, the Board may grant a specific 

power of attorney to carry out some action on behalf of the Board, provided, however, 

that no such power of attorney may be granted unless an appropriate resolution of the 

Board authorizes the same to be done. 

 

7.04 Checks and Drafts 

 

All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences 

of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be handled in compliance 

with the finance and payment polices, and applicable Codes, of the City of Bastrop, 

Texas, as amended from time to time. 

 

7.05 Deposits 

 

All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited on a regular basis, consistent with 

generally accepted accounting practices, in a local bank that is a depository of the City, 

which shall be federally insured and shall be selected following procedures and 

requirements for selecting a depository as set forth in Chapter 105 of the Local 

Government Code.  All deposits shall be properly accounted for as deposits of the 

Corporation. 

 

 

7.06 Gifts 

 

The Board may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, 

bequest, or devise for the general purpose or for any special purposes of the Corporation. 

 

 

7.07 Purchasing 

 

All purchases made and contracts executed by the Corporation shall be made in 

accordance with the requirements of the Texas Constitution and Statutes of the State of 

Texas and Ordinances of the City of Bastrop, Texas. 

 

7.08 Investments 

 

Temporary and idle funds, which are not needed for immediate obligations of the 

Corporation, shall be maintained on deposit in the Corporation's depository, or may be 

invested in any other legal manner with the approval of the City Council. 

 

01/09/2015 46



 12 

 

7.09 Bonds 

 

Any bonds issued by the Corporation shall be in accordance with the statute 

governing this corporation, but in any event, no bonds shall be issued without approval of 

the Bastrop City Council, after review and comment by the City's bond counsel and 

financial advisor. 

 

SECTION VIII 

RECORD KEEPING AND AUDITING PROCEDURES 

 

The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of all actions 

of the Corporation, including books and records of account and the minutes of meetings 

of the Board of Directors.  All books and records of the Corporation may be inspected by 

Directors of the Corporation or his agent or attorney at any reasonable time; and any 

information, which may be designated as public information by law, shall be open to 

public inspection at any reasonable time.  The Texas Open Records Act and Open 

Meetings Act shall apply to disclosure of public information.  The Board of Directors 

shall provide for an annual financial audit to be performed by a competent independent 

audit firm.  The Corporation may contract with the auditing firm retained by the City of 

Bastrop to perform the audit required by this section. 

 

SECTION IX 

AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS 

 

These Bylaws may be amended or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by 

an affirmative vote of a two-thirds majority of the Board of Directors, at a meeting of the 

Directors held for such specific purpose, and the notice requirements stated hereinabove 

regarding special meetings shall apply.   

 

No amendment to these Bylaws shall become effective without City Council 

approval. 

 

SECTION X 

DISSOLUTION 

 

On petition of ten (10) percent of the registered voters of the City of Bastrop 

requesting an election on the dissolution of the Corporation, the City Council shall order 

an election on the issue.  The election must be conducted according to the applicable 

provision of the Texas Election Code.  The ballot for the election shall be printed to 

provide for voting for or against the proposition: 

 

"Dissolution of the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation of the City of 

Bastrop, Texas" 

 

01/09/2015 47



 13 

If a majority of voters voting on the issue approve the dissolution, the Corporation 

shall continue operations only as necessary to pay the principal and interest on its bonds 

and to meet obligations incurred before the date of the election and, to the extent 

practicable, shall dispose of its assets and apply the proceeds to satisfy those obligations.  

When the last of the obligations is satisfied, any remaining assets of the Corporation shall 

be transferred to the City, and the Corporation is dissolved.  

 

SECTION XI 

INDEMNITY 

 

The Board of Directors shall authorize the Corporation to pay or reimburse any 

current or former Director or Officer of the Corporation for any costs, expenses, fines, 

settlements, judgments, and other amounts, actually and reasonably incurred by such 

person in any action, suit, or proceeding to which he or she is made a party by reason of 

holding such position as Officer or Director, provided, however, that such Officer or 

Director shall not receive such indemnification if he be finally adjudicated in such 

instance to be liable for gross negligence or intentional misconduct in office.  The 

indemnification herein provided shall also extend to good faith expenditures incurred in 

anticipation of, or preparation for, threatened or proposed litigation.  The Board of 

Directors may, in proper cases, extend the indemnification to cover the good faith 

settlement of any such action, suit, or proceedings, whether formally instituted or not. 

 

Furthermore, as set out in the Act, the Corporation, a Director of the Corporation, 

the City creating the Corporation, a member of the governing body of the City, or an 

employee of the Corporation or City is not liable for damages arising from the 

performance of a governmental function of the Corporation or City.  For the purposes of 

Chapter 101, Civil Practice and Remedies Code, the Corporation is a governmental unit 

and its actions are governmental functions. 

 

Corporation further agrees that it shall at all times exercise reasonable precautions 

on behalf of, and be solely responsible for, the safety of its officers, agents, employees, 

licensees, invitees, and other persons, as well as their property, while in the vicinity 

where activities are being performed.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the City 

of Bastrop shall not be liable or responsible for the negligence of Corporation including 

but not limited to its officers, agents, employees, licensees, invitees, and other persons. 

 

These Seventh Amended Bylaws of the Bastrop Economic Development 

Corporation were approved and adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Bastrop Economic Development Corporation, held on _________________, 20___. 

 

 

   ________________________________  

   Steve Mills, Chairman of the BEDC 

01/09/2015 48



 14 

 

Approved and adopted at a meeting of the City Council held on 

_________________, 20___. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

                                      Ken Kesselus, Mayor of Bastrop, Texas 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Elizabeth Lopez, City Secretary 

 

 

 

 

01/09/2015 49



B.E.D.C.  

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM   D1__  

 

 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  January 9, 2015_   

         

  MEETING DATE: _ January 12, 2015_      
 

 

 

1.  Agenda Item:  Consideration, discussion and possible action on acceptance of the Bastrop 

Economic Development Corporation’s financial summary reports for the periods ending October 31, 
2014, November 30, 2014, and December 31, 2014. 
  
2.  Party Making Request:  Angela Ryan, BEDC Executive Assistant    

   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes    X No      

  
Due to the Finance Department closing out FY2013/2014, the October Financial Summary Report was not 
completed in time for the November BEDC Board meeting, and there was no Board meeting in December. 
Attached for the Board’s review and consideration are the BEDC financial summary reports for the periods 
ending October 31, 2014, November 30, 2014, and December 31, 2014. 
 

4.  Policy Implication:  ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  Budgeted:  _________Yes   __________No              X          N/A 

 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 

 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 

       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 

6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  ________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 

     a)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     b)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     c)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  Staff Recommendation:   

 

9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 

 

10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 

 

11. Action Taken:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

      ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

01/09/2015 50



Bastrop Economic Development Corporation

Financial Summary 
For Period Ending October 31, 2014

01/09/2015 51



Bastrop Economic Development Corporation
Summary of Revenues and Expenditures
As of October 31, 2014

Fiscal year 2015 is 1 month or 8.33% complete as of October 31, 2014. These reports provide an unaudited and preliminary snapshot of the 
BEDC financial information. 

 Revenues reflect 8.75% collected or $156,672. Revenues during this same time period last year reflected $136,928. Additional analysis 
concerning revenues are on the next two pages.

 Expenses for the BEDC reflect 4.49% spent or $80,350. Expenses during this same time period last year reflected $89,609. Additional 
analysis concerning the expenses, year to year comparisons, and capital outlay is located within this report.

FY 2015 
Budget

FY 2015 
Actual

% of FY2015
Budget

FY 2015 
Budget

FY 2015 
Actual

% of FY2015
Budget                           

$      1,790,650 $       156,672 8.75% $      1,790,650 $        80,350 4.49%

Revenues Expenditures

01/09/2015 52



REVENUE: Sales Tax receipts represent 96% of the total budgeted revenue for the BEDC. As such, the line graph will be a good performance 
indicator as a comparison of sales tax receipts of the two  previous fiscal years to the current fiscal year.  Other revenue is included within the line 
graph to include Lease Agreement Income, Interest Income, and Miscellaneous Income. 

The spikes reflected on the graph in FY2014 are tied to specific transactions.  These include the reimbursement of expenses from the Combination 
Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013 in February 2014 of $102,638; and the transfer from Bond Fund proceeds to cover debt 
service costs in May 2014 of $200,261; and the sale of land in April and September for $93,475.

Line graph chart reflects monthly revenue incurred for three fiscal years. FY2013 includes October 1, 2012 thru September 30, 2013. FY2014 includes 
October 1, 2013 thru September 30, 2014. FY2015 reflects revenue received year-to-date for October 1, 2014 thru September 30, 2015. Data provided 
by City of Bastrop Finance Department records. 

Summary of Revenues and Expenditures
As of October 31, 2014

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

October November December January February March April May June July August September

Revenue All Sources

FY2015 Revenues $156,672 FY2014 Revenues $136,928 FY2013 Revenues $130,610

01/09/2015 53



Sales Tax Revenue Chart
As of October 31, 2014

October November December January February March April May June July August September
FY2015 $156,389 $156,389
FY2014 $136,609 $136,609 $139,090 $133,664 $140,242 $169,193 $119,711 $131,743 $156,582 $156,785 $137,347 $165,388 $152,168
FY2013 $129,839 $129,839 $127,018 $136,024 $134,330 $157,802 $117,933 $138,085 $155,683 $134,808 $134,926 $155,458 $138,904

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

160,000

170,000

180,000

FY2015 $156,389

FY2014 $136,609

FY2013 $129,839

* Date range in chart reflects current data of October 1, 2011 thru September 30, 2014. Data provided by City of Bastrop Finance Department records. 

Sales Tax Receipts YTD reflect $156,389 and are greater than the prior year to date Sales Tax Receipts of $136,609.  For the month of 
October, the Sales Tax Receipts total $152,168. This represents an increase of $13,265 in comparison to the September 2013 MTD total of 
$138,903.

01/09/2015 54



FY 2015 Budget                                                                                          FY2015 Expenses ‐ October

* Pie charts reflect FY2015 adopted budget and fiscal year-to date expenses as of October 31, 2014. Data provided by City of Bastrop Finance Department records. 

Expenditure Charts
As of October 31, 2014

11%
1%
10%

18%

7%

53%

Personnel Supplies & Materials

Maintenance & Occupancy Contractual Services

Other Capital

Debt Service

13%
1%

6%

12%

38%

2%

28%

Personnel Supplies & Materials

Maintenance & Occupancy Contractual Services

Other Capital

Debt Service

01/09/2015 55



Expenditure Comparison Graph
As of October 31, 2014

EXPENSES: The line graph makes a comparison of the current fiscal year expenses to the last two fiscal year on a monthly basis. The funds’ basic 
operations or fixed expenses should stay relatively flat or fixed on the line graph. 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

$450,000 Expenditures by Fiscal Year

FY2015 Expenses YTD $80,350

FY2014 Expenses YTD $89,609

FY2013 Expenses YTD $72,745

* Line graph chart reflects monthly expenses incurred for three fiscal years. FY2013 includes October 1, 2012 thru September 30, 2013. 
FY2014 includes October 1, 2013 thru September 30, 2014. FY2015 reflects year-to-date, October 1, 2014 thru September 30, 2015. 
Data provided by City of Bastrop Finance Department records.

01/09/2015 56



* The projected operating balance includes a $150,000 reduction for designated operating equity.

** In order to maintain a 25% or 90 day  balance, the ending operating balance cannot be less than $841,890. The budgeted expenditures for the Bastrop 
Economic Development Corporation can only increase $1,525,000 and the total budgeted expenditures may not exceed $3,315,650. These figures are 
subject to change depending upon actual Revenues and Expenditures.

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

FY 2014‐2015 BUDGET

Projected Fund Balance 9‐30‐2014 $            2,366,890

FY 2014‐2015

Budgeted Revenues $            1,790,650

Total FY 2015 Resources $            4,157,540

Budgeted Expenditures: $          (1,790,650)

Projected Ending Gross Fund Balance 09‐30‐2015 $            2,366,890

01/09/2015 57



BEDC Financial Statements attached

01/09/2015 58



01/09/2015 59



01/09/2015 60



01/09/2015 61



01/09/2015 62



01/09/2015 63



01/09/2015 64



01/09/2015 65



01/09/2015 66



Bastrop Economic Development Corporation

Financial Summary 
For Period Ending November 30, 2014

01/09/2015 67



Bastrop Economic Development Corporation
Summary of Revenues and Expenditures
As of November 30, 2014

Fiscal year 2015 is 2 month or 16.67% complete as of November 30, 2014. These reports provide an unaudited and preliminary snapshot of 
the BEDC financial information. 

 Revenues reflect 17.32% collected or $310,216. Revenues during this same time period last year reflected $276,390. Additional analysis 
concerning revenues are on the next two pages.

 Expenses for the BEDC reflect 10.21% spent or $182,802. Expenses during this same time period last year reflected $191,716. Additional 
analysis concerning the expenses, year to year comparisons, and capital outlay is located within this report.

FY 2015 
Budget

FY 2015 
Actual

% of FY2015
Budget

FY 2015 
Budget

FY 2015 
Actual

% of FY2015
Budget                           

$      1,790,650 $       310,216 17.32% $      1,790,650 $       182,802 10.21%

Revenues Expenditures

01/09/2015 68



REVENUE: Sales Tax receipts represent 96% of the total budgeted revenue for the BEDC. As such, the line graph will be a good performance 
indicator as a comparison of sales tax receipts of the two  previous fiscal years to the current fiscal year.  Other revenue is included within the line 
graph to include Lease Agreement Income, Interest Income, and Miscellaneous Income. 

The spikes reflected on the graph in FY2014 are tied to specific transactions.  These include the reimbursement of expenses from the Combination 
Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013 in February 2014 of $102,638; and the transfer from Bond Fund proceeds to cover debt 
service costs in May 2014 of $200,261; and the sale of land in April and September for $93,475.

Line graph chart reflects monthly revenue incurred for three fiscal years. FY2013 includes October 1, 2012 thru September 30, 2013. FY2014 includes 
October 1, 2013 thru September 30, 2014. FY2015 reflects revenue received year-to-date for October 1, 2014 thru September 30, 2015. Data provided 
by City of Bastrop Finance Department records. 

Summary of Revenues and Expenditures
As of November 30, 2014

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

October November December January February March April May June July August September

Revenue All Sources

FY2015 Revenues $310,216 FY2014 Revenues $276,390 FY2013 Revenues $258,219

01/09/2015 69



Sales Tax Revenue Chart
As of November 30, 2014

October November December January February March April May June July August September
FY2015 $156,389 $156,389 $153,438
FY2014 $136,609 $136,609 $139,090 $133,664 $140,242 $169,193 $119,711 $131,743 $156,582 $156,785 $137,347 $165,388 $152,168
FY2013 $129,839 $129,839 $127,018 $136,024 $134,330 $157,802 $117,933 $138,085 $155,683 $134,808 $134,926 $155,458 $138,904

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

160,000

170,000

180,000

FY2015 $156,389

FY2014 $136,609

FY2013 $129,839

* Date range in chart reflects current data of October 1, 2011 thru September 30, 2014. Data provided by City of Bastrop Finance Department records. 

Sales Tax Receipts YTD reflect $309,826 and are greater than the prior year to date Sales Tax Receipts of $276,390.  For the month of 
November, the Sales Tax Receipts total $153,544. 

01/09/2015 70



FY 2015 Budget                                                                                          FY2015 Expenses ‐ October

* Pie charts reflect FY2015 adopted budget and fiscal year-to date expenses as of November 30, 2014. Data provided by City of Bastrop Finance Department records. 

Expenditure Charts
As of November 30, 2014

13%
1%
8%

22%

9%

47%

Personnel
Supplies & Materials
Maintenance & Occupancy
Contractual Services
Other
Capital
Debt Service

13%
1%

6%

12%

38%

2%

28%

Personnel Supplies & Materials

Maintenance & Occupancy Contractual Services

Other Capital

Debt Service

01/09/2015 71



Expenditure Comparison Graph
As of November 30, 2014

EXPENSES: The line graph makes a comparison of the current fiscal year expenses to the last two fiscal year on a monthly basis. The funds’ basic 
operations or fixed expenses should stay relatively flat or fixed on the line graph. 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

$450,000 Expenditures by Fiscal Year

FY2015 Expenses YTD $182,802

FY2014 Expenses YTD $191,716

FY2013 Expenses YTD $189,042

* Line graph chart reflects monthly expenses incurred for three fiscal years. FY2013 includes October 1, 2012 thru September 30, 2013. 
FY2014 includes October 1, 2013 thru September 30, 2014. FY2015 reflects year-to-date, October 1, 2014 thru September 30, 2015. 
Data provided by City of Bastrop Finance Department records.

01/09/2015 72



* The projected operating balance includes a $150,000 reduction for designated operating equity.

** In order to maintain a 25% or 90 day  balance, the ending operating balance cannot be less than $841,890. The budgeted expenditures for the Bastrop 
Economic Development Corporation can only increase $1,525,000 and the total budgeted expenditures may not exceed $3,315,650. These figures are 
subject to change depending upon actual Revenues and Expenditures.

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

FY 2014‐2015 BUDGET

Projected Fund Balance 9‐30‐2014 $            2,366,890

FY 2014‐2015

Budgeted Revenues $            1,790,650

Total FY 2015 Resources $            4,157,540

Budgeted Expenditures: $          (1,790,650)

Projected Ending Gross Fund Balance 09‐30‐2015 $            2,366,890

01/09/2015 73



BEDC Financial Statements attached

01/09/2015 74



01/09/2015 75



01/09/2015 76



01/09/2015 77



01/09/2015 78



01/09/2015 79



01/09/2015 80



01/09/2015 81



01/09/2015 82



Bastrop Economic Development Corporation

Financial Summary 
For Period Ending December 31, 2014

01/09/2015 83



Bastrop Economic Development Corporation
Summary of Revenues and Expenditures
As of December 31, 2014

Fiscal year 2015 is 3 month or 25% complete as of December 31, 2014. These reports provide an unaudited and preliminary snapshot of the 
BEDC financial information. 

 Revenues reflect 25.99% collected or $465,322. Revenues during this same time period last year reflected $410,192. Additional analysis 
concerning revenues are on the next two pages.

 Expenses for the BEDC reflect 21.23% spent or $380,185. Expenses during this same time period last year reflected $336,590. Additional 
analysis concerning the expenses, year to year comparisons, and capital outlay is located within this report.

FY 2015 

Budget

FY 2015 

Actual

% of FY2015

Budget

FY 2015 

Budget

FY 2015 

Actual

% of FY2015

Budget                           

$      1,790,650 $       465,322 25.99% $      1,790,650 $       380,185 21.23%

Revenues Expenditures

01/09/2015 84



REVENUE: Sales Tax receipts represent 96% of the total budgeted revenue for the BEDC. As such, the line graph will be a good performance 
indicator as a comparison of sales tax receipts of the two  previous fiscal years to the current fiscal year.  Other revenue is included within the line 
graph to include Lease Agreement Income, Interest Income, and Miscellaneous Income. 

The spikes reflected on the graph in FY2014 are tied to specific transactions.  These include the reimbursement of expenses from the Combination 
Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013 in February 2014 of $102,638; and the transfer from Bond Fund proceeds to cover debt 
service costs in May 2014 of $200,261; and the sale of land in April and September for $93,475.

Line graph chart reflects monthly revenue incurred for three fiscal years. FY2013 includes October 1, 2012 thru September 30, 2013. FY2014 includes 
October 1, 2013 thru September 30, 2014. FY2015 reflects revenue received year-to-date for October 1, 2014 thru September 30, 2015. Data provided 
by City of Bastrop Finance Department records. 

Summary of Revenues and Expenditures
As of December 31, 2014

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

October November December January February March April May June July August September

Revenue All Sources

FY2015 Revenues $465,322 FY2014 Revenues $410,192 FY2013 Revenues $394,597

01/09/2015 85



Sales Tax Revenue Chart
As of December 31, 2014

October November December January February March April May June July August September
FY2015 $464,558 $156,389 $153,438 $154,731
FY2014 $409,363 $136,609 $139,090 $133,664 $140,242 $169,193 $119,711 $131,743 $156,582 $156,785 $137,347 $165,388 $152,168
FY2013 $392,881 $129,839 $127,018 $136,024 $134,330 $157,802 $117,933 $138,085 $155,683 $134,808 $134,926 $155,458 $138,904

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

160,000

170,000

180,000

FY2015 $464,558

FY2014 $409,363

FY2013 $392,881

* Date range in chart reflects current data of October 1, 2012 thru September 30, 2015. Data provided by City of Bastrop Finance Department records. 

Sales Tax Receipts YTD reflect $464,558 and are greater than the prior year to date Sales Tax Receipts of $409,363.  For the month of 
November, the Sales Tax Receipts total $154,731. 

01/09/2015 86



FY 2015 Budget                                                                                          FY2015 Expenses - December

* Pie charts reflect FY2015 adopted budget and fiscal year-to date expenses as of December 31, 2014. Data provided by City of Bastrop Finance Department records. 

Expenditure Charts
As of December 31, 2014

10%
>1%

6%

20%

30%

34%

Personnel
Supplies & Materials
Maintenance & Occupancy
Contractual Services
Other
Capital
Debt Service

13%

1%

6%

12%

38%

2%

28%

Personnel Supplies & Materials

Maintenance & Occupancy Contractual Services

Other Capital

Debt Service

01/09/2015 87



Expenditure Comparison Graph
As of December 31, 2014

EXPENSES: The line graph makes a comparison of the current fiscal year expenses to the last two fiscal year on a monthly basis. The funds’ basic 
operations or fixed expenses should stay relatively flat or fixed on the line graph. 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

$450,000 Expenditures by Fiscal Year

FY2015 Expenses YTD $380,185

FY2014 Expenses YTD $336,590

FY2013 Expenses YTD $299,039

* Line graph chart reflects monthly expenses incurred for three fiscal years. FY2013 includes October 1, 2012 thru September 30, 2013. 
FY2014 includes October 1, 2013 thru September 30, 2014. FY2015 reflects year-to-date, October 1, 2014 thru September 30, 2015. 
Data provided by City of Bastrop Finance Department records.

01/09/2015 88



* The projected operating balance includes a $150,000 reduction for designated operating equity.

** In order to maintain a 25% or 90 day  balance, the ending operating balance cannot be less than $841,890. The budgeted expenditures for the Bastrop 
Economic Development Corporation can only increase $1,525,000 and the total budgeted expenditures may not exceed $3,315,650. These figures are 
subject to change depending upon actual Revenues and Expenditures.

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

FY 2014-2015 BUDGET

Projected Fund Balance 9-30-2014 $            2,366,890

FY 2014-2015

Budgeted Revenues $            1,790,650

Total FY 2015 Resources $            4,157,540

Budgeted Expenditures: $          (1,790,650)

Projected Ending Gross Fund Balance 09-30-2015 $            2,366,890

01/09/2015 89



BEDC Financial Statements attached

01/09/2015 90



01/09/2015 91



01/09/2015 92



01/09/2015 93



01/09/2015 94



01/09/2015 95



01/09/2015 96



01/09/2015 97



01/09/2015 98



B.E.D.C.  

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM     D2__  
 
 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  January 5, 2015   
         

MEETING DATE: _  January 12, 2015       
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Consideration, discussion and possible action on a request for the Bastrop Economic 
Development Corporation to sponsor a table at the Eric Johnson/Mike Stern Concert on February 
17, benefitting the Bastrop County Boys and Girls Club, in the amount of $1,000.  
 
   
2.  Party Making Request:  Gary Schiff    
   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes      X         No     
  
Request for $1,000 sponsorship by the Bastrop EDC for the Eric Johnson/Mike Stern Concert to be 
held on February 17, 2015, benefitting the Bastrop County Boys and Girls Club. The sponsorship 
includes tickets for eight and backstage reception passes. 
 
4.  Policy Implication:  ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
5.  Budgeted:   X Yes   __________No       N/A 
 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 
 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 
       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 
6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  ________________________________________________________________ 
 
7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 
     a)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 
     b)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 
     c)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
8.  Staff Recommendation:   
 
9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 
 
10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 
 
11. Action Taken:  _______________________________________________________________________ 
      ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

01/09/2015 99



PRESENTED BY

Photo: Max Crace

BENEFITTING

OF BASTROP COUNTY

C
O
N
C
E
R
T

JERRY FAY WILHELM PERFORMING 
ARTS CENTER – BASTROP
For Tickets: Ticketbud.com

or Jo Albers at 512-569-6140

Tues. Feb. 17 2015, 7-9pm

01/09/2015 100



B.E.D.C.  

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM     D3__  

 

 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  January 5, 2015   
         

MEETING DATE: _  January 12, 2015       
 

 

 

Agenda Item: Consideration, discussion and possible action on a request for the Bastrop Economic 

Development Corporation to sponsor the Naturefest event scheduled for April 18, 2015.  
 
   
2.  Party Making Request:  Jason Alfaro, City of Bastrop Parks Board     

   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes       X        No     

  
Request for sponsorship by the Bastrop EDC for the 2015 Naturefest event to be held on April 18, 
2015.  
 

4.  Policy Implication:  ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  Budgeted:    Yes     X No       N/A 

 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 

 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 

       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 

6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  ________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 

     a)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     b)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     c)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  Staff Recommendation:   

 

9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 

 

10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 

 

11. Action Taken:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

      ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

01/09/2015 101



01/09/2015 102



01/09/2015 103



BEDC 

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM   _D4___  

 

 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  __1/7/2015____   
         

MEETING DATE: ___1/12/2015_____      
 

 

 

1.  Agenda Item: ___Pre approval for project to renovate interior and exterior of 711 Chestnut Street; 

estimate is $80,000 with Mega Grant to reimburse $20,000._  
   
2.  Party Making Request: ___Nancy Wood______   

   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes  __X ___  No  ______   

 

New owner of the building, Donald (Todd) Bennet, will level and brace first and second floor beams, put in 

seven new windows (in historic mode), add all new electrical, add new heating and AC system, make roof 

repairs, and paint. Owner will submit all estimates with final application 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

4.  Policy Implication:  ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  Budgeted:  _________Yes   __________No    ___________N/A 

 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 

 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 

       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 

6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  ________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 

     a)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     b)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     c)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  Staff Recommendation:  Yes to the pre-application; Design Committee: TBD at 1/13 meeting 

 

9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 

 

10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 

 

11. Action Taken:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

      ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

01/09/2015 104



01/09/2015 105



01/09/2015 106



BEDC 

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION     AGENDA ITEM   _D5___  

 

 

STANDARDIZED AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 

BEDC        DATE SUBMITTED:  __1/7/2015____   
         

MEETING DATE: ___1/12/2015_____      
 

 

 

1.  Agenda Item: ___Pre approval for project to renovate interior and exterior of 713/717 Chestnut 

Street (old Bastrop Abstract one story building); estimate is $25,000 with Mega Grant to reimburse 
$6,250._  
   
2.  Party Making Request: ___Nancy Wood______   

   
3.  Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview) Attachments:  Yes  __X ___  No  ______   

 

New tenant of the building, Deborah Jones, will replace front door and frame, redo rear entrance and parking 

surface, replace all interior flooring, replace awnings on exterior, reframe interior and supports, paint. Tenant 

has owner permission as part of lease and will submit all estimates with final application. 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

4.  Policy Implication:  ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  Budgeted:  _________Yes   __________No    ___________N/A 

 Bid Amount:  ________________  Budgeted Amount:  _________________ 

 Under Budget:  _______________  Over Budget:  _____________________ 

       Amount Remaining:  ________________ 
 

6.  Alternate Option/Costs:  ________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  Routing:     NAME/TITLE                               INITIAL                DATE              CONCURRENCE 

     a)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     b)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

     c)  ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  Staff Recommendation:  Yes to the pre-application; Design Committee: TBD at 1/13 meeting 

 

9.  Advisory Board:  _________Approved   _________Disapproved    ___________None 

 

10. Manager’s Recommendation:  __________Approved    __________Disapproved   __________None 

 

11. Action Taken:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

      ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

01/09/2015 107



01/09/2015 108



01/09/2015 109


	01-12-15 BEDC Board Meeting Agenda
	January Meeting Project Updates
	A1 Minutes Binder
	A1 November Minutes Cover Sheet
	DRAFT 11-17-14 Board Meeting Minutes

	C1 Niece Contract Cover Sheet
	C2 Golf Binder
	C2 Disc Golf cover sheet November 2014
	Reduced Disc Golf Course Site Bastrop IP 2014

	C3 RC Binder
	C3 Cover Sheet - Restrictive Covenants
	Restrictive Covenants with Exhibits Jan 12 Brd Mtg
	January 2015 Restrictive Covenants
	Field Notes for Restrictive Covenants
	Updated Industrial Park Area Map


	C4 Bylaws Binder
	C4 Cover Sheet - Bylaws
	Clean Seventh AMENDED BYLAWS 11 18 14

	D1 Financials Binder
	January Meeting Financials Cover Sheet
	October Financial Report
	October 2014  EDC Monthly Report 1
	OCTOBER 2014 INCODE REPORT

	November Financial Report
	November 2014  EDC Monthly Report
	NOVEMBER 2014 INCODE

	December Financial Report
	December 2014  EDC Monthly Report
	December Incode


	D2 Binder
	D2 Eric Johnson Concert Cover Sheet
	Eric Johnson Flyer

	D3 Naturefest Binder
	D3 Naturefest Cover Sheet
	Sponsorship Request Parks Dept - Naturefest

	D4 711 Chestnut Grant Binder
	BEDC Board Agenda Item - 711 Chestnut Street Pre App Cover Sheet
	Pre-app 711 Chestnut St

	D5 713 717 Chestnut Grant Binder
	BEDC Board Agenda Item - 713-717 Chestnut Street Pre App Cover Sheet
	Pre-app 713 and 717 Chestnut St




